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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as
to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Corporate Information (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®RE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

Listing

On 19 January 2012, the company was successfully spun-off from Kith
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1201) and listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”). Listing has laid a foundation
for the Group to continue to develop as one stop integrated circuit
solution provider.

Business Review

2012 was a year of fast changing and difficulties. During the year, the
Group recorded a substantial loss. Such loss was primarily attributable to
the drop in revenue and gross profit of the Group as a result of increasing
competition in the integrated circuit (“IC") industry as well as stagnant
demand in the IC industry which was caused by the on-going debt crisis in
Europe and slowing down of the PRC economy, and one-off expenses
incurred in connection with the Listing as well as an increase in
administrative expenses over the period under review. On one hand, the
Group took cautious control of cost. On the other hand, the Group
continued to enhance research and development activities for diversifying
new IC products and improving existing IC products so as to maintain
market competitiveness. As the market was being affected by poor
sentiment, the customers tended for longer process of new IC models
evaluation, acceptance and modification work and hence, the completion
time of development had been extended. The Group had only launched 3
new IC models during the year 2012 and had 15 new IC models under
development as at 31 December 2012.

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s performance,
financial position and other information in the year 2012 with
shareholders in the following section of management discussion and
analysis.

In order to become one of the major IC solution providers in Asia, the
Group is expected to continue to achieve the business objectives as set
out in the Company’'s prospectus dated 30 December 2011 (the
“Prospectus”) despite the delay in the establishment of Suzhou office
would be delayed due to market condition. Please refer to the following
section of comparison of business objectives with actual business progress
for details.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EFFEHRE @

Nevertheless, the demand and selling prices of DVD Players ICs, being one
of our major ASIC products, unexpectedly dropped due to market
situation and keen competition in the DVD player market, which may be
resulting from the launch of certain new smart mobile phones, tablets and
other relevant products which have more convenient, internet and video
functions hence conquering the market of certain electronic products,
including DVD player market. Besides, the consumption from Russia
market for LCD Driver ICs for instrument panel, being one of our major
Standard IC products, was showed a substantial drop in the year 2012,
which may be caused by the effect of on-going debt crisis in Europe. In
this regard, we may seek for new business for business diversification in
order to reduce commercial risk and look for opportunity to turn loss into
profit.

Proposed Acquisition

On 28 January 2013, the Company entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement (the “S&P") to acquire the entire issued capital of Jin
Dragon Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Target Group”) at a consideration of HK$45,000,000 (the
“Consideration”) which will be satisfied by (i) HK$4,500,000 refundable
deposit paid under S&P; (i) cash of HK$15,500,000 and (iii) issuance of
promissory note of HK$25,000,000 by the Company upon completion of
the proposed acquisition (the “Proposed Acquisition”).

The Target Group is principally engaged in the securities broking, margin
financing, underwriting, placing services and consultancy services. We
believe the Proposed Acquisition will diversify the Group’s business
transformation which enables the Group to deliver long-term sustainable
returns to shareholders.

The completion of the Proposed Acquisition is subject to the fulfillment of
the conditions set out in the S&P. According to the GEM Listing Rules, the
Proposed Acquisition constitutes a major and connected acquisition of the
Company. As of the approval date on the financial statements of the
Company, the Proposed Acquisition is under progress and not yet
completed. Details are disclosed in Company’s announcements dated 28
January 2013, 27 February 2013 and 6 March 2013.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

* FEHE @

Corporate Governance

The Group remains committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. All board committees have effectively supported the Board in
carrying out its responsibilities. By conducting its business under good
corporate governance, the group’s and shareholder’s long term interests
will be maximized.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere thanks to our
management team, employees and business partners for their continuous
dedication and commitment to the Group. Finally, | would like to express

my gratitude to the Group’s shareholders and investors for their
continuous support and trust towards the Group.

Mr. Hui King Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Group is a fabless
semiconductor company specializing in provision of IC solutions and is
engaged in design, development and sales of ICs. The Group sells IC
under its own brand name “MiniLogic” and provides application specific
IC service ("ASIC Service”) in design and development of tailor-made IC to
its customers. The Group has no production facility of its own, and
outsources the production process to specialist semiconductor
subcontractors. The Group provides tailor-made IC solutions and sells
tailor-made ICs to customers under the ASIC Service business section (the
"ASIC Section”); and independently develops and sells generically-
applicable ICs for sale in the market under the MiniLogic Brand IC business
section (the “Standard IC Section”).

Business Review

During the year 2012, the Group’s R&D teams completed and launched 3
new IC models as follows:

Section Product Name
72 EREB
1 ASIC MP1109 Portable DVD Power
Management Unit IC
ASIC MP1109 7] # = DVD % 5 2%
EABREEEXERE
2 ASIC MP1202 Single Time Electronic
Cigarette with blue LED IC
ASIC MP1202 — /R ELED B ¢ & 7 /&
3 ASIC MP1204 LDO and Tray Driver IC
ASIC MP1204 LDO [ +% 45 B B) 25 &= fk 5 5%

The Group had 15 new IC models under development as at 31 December
2012.

The Directors believe that developing IC products with suitable technology
that appeal to the market is the key to the Group’s long-term success.
Hence, developing new IC products and expanding the range of the
Group's products as well as broadening the customer base are essential
for growth of the Group’s IC solutions and design, development and sales
of ICs business.

January 2012 to
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September 2011 to
September 2012
201149 A E 2012494

September 2012 to present

201293245

September 2012 to present
September 2012
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March 2012 to July 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEWED T

ASIC Section

Under the ASIC Section, the major IC products are Electronic Cigarette
ICs, CCD Surveillance System ICs and DVD Player ICs. Although 3 new IC
models were launched in the year 2012, the increase in revenue for the
new model ICs was not sufficient to offset the decrease in revenue for the
older model ICs as well as decrease in gross profit of ASIC products.
Besides, the revenue from the provision of ASIC services for the year 2012
was dropped to HK$0.8 million (2011: HK$6.3 million) due to poor
market sentiment such that most of the customers took the prudent view
in project investment by observing the market changes. The overall
revenue of the ASIC Section for the year 2012 dropped by 41.0% to
HK$25.8 million (2011: HK$43.7 million).

As compared with the year 2011, the performance of the ASIC Section in
the year 2012 was poor due to market competition and situations.
However, the demand for Electronic Cigarette ICs recorded stable despite
a downward clash in selling prices due to keen competition. The demand
and selling prices for CCD Surveillance System ICs went down due to keen
competition. Nevertheless, the demand and selling prices of DVD Players
ICs unexpectedly dropped due to market situation and keen competition
in the DVD player market, which may be resulting from the launch of
certain smart mobile phones, tablets and other relevant products which
have more convenient, internet and video functions hence conquering the
market of certain electronic products, including DVD player market.

Standard IC Section

Under the Standard IC Section, the major IC products are Power
Management ICs, LCD Driver ICs for instrument panel and LED Lighting
Driver ICs. No new model IC was launched in the year 2012 due to poor
market sentiment. The overall revenue of the Standard IC Section for the
year 2012 decreased by 64.3% to HK$5.5 million (2011: HK$15.4
million).

As compared with the year 2011, the performance of the Standard IC
Section in the year 2012 was poor due to market competition and
situations. The demand for Power Management ICs went down due to
competition. Besides, the consumption from Russia market for LCD Driver
ICs for instrument panel was showed a substantial drop, which may be
caused by the effect of on-going debt crisis in Europe. For LED Lighting
Driver ICs, we were in the process of developing more series of LED
Lighting Driver ICs with the expectation to more customers’ order in LED
Lighting market for the near future.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAl SR £ B AR A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEWED T

Summary of Consolidated Financial
Information

The following is a summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

REVBENME

NTREAEERECUBRRREREEMR
ENREMEREZBEAEAMBRFREE TIHE
BBERBEME - A E I TEKE X
WEA B

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009
2012 20114 20104 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FET FAET FBTT
Revenue & 31,281 59,134 66,066 25,362
(Loss)/profit after income tax [ FT 15 1% 1% (/&5 18 )/ % A (17,211) 10,796 15,943 369
Basic (loss)/earnings per share & X E AN (E538 ) & A (B L)
(HK cents) (8.7) 7.2 10.6 0.2
As at 31 December
MW12831H

2012 2011 2010 2009
20124 20114 20104 2009 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT F# T
Total assets BEE 64,023 46,604 33,457 11,142
Total liabilities waFE 3,601 3,293 10,942 4,742
Net assets AEFE 60,422 43,311 22,515 6,400

Financial Review B % [ B&

The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$31.3 million for
the year 2012 (2011: approximately HK$59.1 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 47.0% as compared with that of the year
2011. Save as disclosed in the above Sections, the increased competition
in the IC industry, slowing down of the PRC economy and the on-going
debt crisis in Europe had an impact on the demand for the Group’s
products and services and on the drop in overall revenue of the Group for
the year 2012.

KEER2NFEHFSBWZAN3I3ITESE T
(2011 : 49591 8 & /& JT) » B20114F [F 85 tb &R
DHI4T.0% o Br Bl > EEHEBE AN - SR AK B B 1T
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEWED T

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales of the Group decreased by 32.8% from approximately
HK$36.6 million for the year 2011 to approximately HK$24.6 million for
the year 2012.

The overall gross profit of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$22.6 million in the year 2011 to approximately HK$6.7 million in the
year 2012, representing a decrease of 70.4%. The gross profit of the ASIC
Section declined by approximately HK$12.7 million to approximately
HK$5.6 million in the year 2012 (2011: approximately HK$18.3 million),
and gross profit margin of ASIC Section was 22%, representing a drop of
20% from that of the year 2011, primarily due to a substantial drop of
revenue from provision of ASIC services and overall decrease in selling
prices of ASIC products. The gross profit of the Standard IC Section
decreased by approximately HK$3.2 million to approximately HK$1.1
million in the year 2012 (2011: approximately HK$4.3 million), and the
gross profit margin of Standard IC Section was 20%, representing a slight
drop of 8% from that of the year 2011, primarily due to a decrease in
sales of higher margin IC products.

Expenses

Staff costs for the year 2012 increased by approximately HK$1.3 million as
compared to the year 2011, which was mainly due to the increase in
general pay level to cope with the need of business development and
listing.

Depreciation for the year 2012 was approximately HK$1.3 million which
was similar to the year 2011, primarily due to the increase in purchase of
instruments for production of new IC products.

Other operating expenses for the year 2012 were approximately HK$18.5
million (2011: approximately HK$3.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately HK$15.3 million from that of the previous year. The
increase was primarily attributable to expenses incurred in connection
with the listing of approximately HK$9.3 million, which are non-recurrent
in nature, to be recognized upon of the completion of the Listing,
increases in product development expenses, operating costs and other on-
going administrative expenses for listing. As the IC market was poor in the
year 2012, together with the prudent market sentiment, the customers
had relatively demanded for higher standard in technological innovation.
As a result, the relative product development expenses of new IC products
have increased as compared to the year 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEWED T

(Loss)/profit Attributable to Owners of the
Company

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
2012 is approximately HK$17.2 million. For the year 2011, the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company is
approximately HK$10.8 million.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group generally financed its daily operations from internally
generated cash flows. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank and
cash balances of approximately HK$43.9 million (2011: approximately
HK$7.6 million) and did not have any borrowings, banking facilities or any
loan arrangement containing any covenant. The gearing ratio calculated
as the ratio of total interest-bearing debt to total assets was nil as at 31
December 2012 (31 December 2011: nil). Taking into account the cash
reserves, the net proceeds from placing upon the Listing and recurring
cash flows from its core business, the Group’s financial position is healthy,
positioning the Group advantageously to expand its core business and to
achieve its business objectives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group's transactions are mainly denominated in United States dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
foreign currency exchange risk. The Group has not implemented any
foreign currency hedging policy at the moment. However, continuous
monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is carried out by the
management and the management will consider hedging against foreign
exchange risk if it is significant to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Contingent Liabilities and Capital
Commitment

As at 31 December 2012, 6 employees of the Group have completed the
required number of years of service under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57, Law of Hong Kong) (the “Employment Ordinance”),
to be eligible for long service payments on termination of their
employment. The Group is liable to make such payments where the
termination meets the circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance. These circumstances include (i) dismissal by reasons other than
serious misconduct; (ii) being certified as permanently unfit for the present

job and that the relevant employee resigns; (iii) resignation when the

relevant employee is aged 65 or above; and (iv) death of the relevant
employee in service. If the termination of all such employees met the
circumstances set out in the Employment Ordinance, the Group’s liability
as at 31 December 2012 would have been approximately HK$84,000. No
provision has been made for these amounts in the consolidated financial
statements as the Directors are of the view that these amounts are not
expected to crystallize in the foreseeable future.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities or capital commitment as at 31 December 2012.

Significant Investments held, Material
Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
and Future Plans for Material Investments
or Capital Assets

Save for those disclosed in this report, there were no significant
investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2012, nor were there
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries by the Group during the
year. There is a proposed acquisition under processing as at the date of
this report, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 28
January 2013, 27 February 2013 and 6 March 2013 for details.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group has approximately 13 (2011: 15) employees as at 31 December
2012. The total staff costs for the year 2012, including directors’
amounted to approximately HK$6.1 million (2011:
approximately HK$4.8 million). The Group’s remuneration policies are in
line with the prevailing market practice and are determined on the basis
of performance, qualification and experience of individual employee.

remuneration,

We recognize the importance of a good relationship with our employees.
The remuneration payable to our employees includes salaries and
allowances. Other benefits include training and discretionary bonus.

Comparison of Business Objectives with
Actual Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 December 2011 (“Prospectus”) for the period from
23 December 2011, being the latest practicable date as defined in the
Prospectus (“LPD") to 31 December 2012 (the “Review Period”) with the
Group's actual business progress for the Review Period is set out as
follows:

Business Objective for
the Review Period

Actual Business Progress up to
31 December 2012

Enhancing product development by diversifying
into new IC products and improving existing IC
products

5 new MiniLogic Brand IC models were still
under development, including
(i) ML1370 LED Light Tube Driver IC,
(i) MP1110 24V LED Backlight Driver
with dimming control IC which was sold
to ASIC customer with its development
work in progress, (i) ML1361 MR16 LED
Lighting Driver with Buck/Boost Feature IC,
(iv) ML1372 E27 LED Light Bulb Driver
IC and (v) MP1205 USB Backup Power
Supply IC, during the Review Period.
The completion of development of these
new IC models had been extended as
the process was prolonged due to
customer evaluation, acceptance and
modification work.

Develop and launch 8 new
MiniLogic Brand IC models

As to LED Light Bulb Driver with PFC feature
IC and two more new MiniLogic Brand
IC models under the category of
LED Lighting Driver ICs, the projects had
not been deployed due to the specification
of market demand being unclear.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Develop and launch 9
new ASIC products

Improve and launch
4 modified existing
IC models

7 new ASIC products were still under 2 R i Ok
development, including (i) MP1103 18V 31 ASIC EE S
Dual Channel Buck Converter IC,

(i) MP1113 Class-D Stereo and Subwoofer
Audio Power Amplifier IC, (iii) Ai9123 Low
Voltage Video Amplifier with Low Pass
Filter IC, (iv) Ai8149 Power Management
Unit for CCD Camera ICs, (v) MP1017
Portable Electronic Charger IC,

(vi) MP1201 Electronic Cigar IC and

(vii) MP1209 Linear LED Driver IC, during
the Review Period. The completion of
development of these new IC models had
been extended as the process was
prolonged due to customer evaluation,
acceptance and modification work.

Nevertheless, 3 new IC models of ASIC
products, namely (i) MP1204 LDO and Tray
Driver IC, (i) MP1109 Portable DVD Power
Management Unit IC and (i) MP1202
Single Time Electronic Cigarette with
blue LED IC, were developed and launched
in July 2012, September 2012 and
September 2012 respectively.

Due to the demand from customer,
the product development of new IC model
of ASIC products was one more than that
stated in the business objective
for the Review Period.

3 modified existing IC models were still under B¢ R R H45

improvement, including (i) MP1105 Static MRIBAEEK
LCD COG Driver IC, (ii)) MP1203 B ik

Rechargeable Electronic Cigarette IC and
(iii) MP1213 Motor Driver IC for portable
DVD player, during the Review Period.
The completion of development

of these new IC models had been
extended as the process was prolonged
due to customer evaluation, acceptance
and modification work.

As to one more modified IC model of existing
IC models, the project had not been
deployed due to the specification of market
demand being unclear.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Strengthening R&D capabilities by establishing a
research and development centre and sales office

in Suzhou, the PRC

Establish Suzhou office

Recruit 6 new employees
with engineering expertise

Provide supporting
services to Hong Kong
R&D team

Explore new opportunities
to cooperate with local
universities in Suzhou, PRC

Develop into a full-fledged
R&D centre

Expanding the customer base and sales network

in the PRC

Formulate an marketing plan

Recruit 5 new sales and
marketing staff

Explore and develop new
sales and marketing network
in Suzhou and Wuxi regions

Visits had been made to Suzhou
Industrial Park, Suzhou, the PRC
by the management of

the Group during the Review Period.

However, in view of uncertain
economic outlook in the PRC
market, the establishment

of Suzhou office would be
delayed until the market
becomes positive.

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced

In view of uncertain economic

outlook in the PRC market, the
formulation of a marketing plan

would be delayed until the
market becomes positive.

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company under the
placing as set out in the Prospectus were approximately HK$24.3 million,
which was different from the estimated net proceeds of approximately
HK$33.8 million (estimated on the assumption that the placing price
would be the mid-point of the stated range as stated in the Prospectus).
We intend to adjust the use of proceeds in the same manner and in the
same proportion as shown in the Prospectus, and approximately HK$11.9
million, HK$10.7 million, HK$1.6 million and HK$0.1 million were
adjusted for (i) enhancing product development by diversifying into new
IC products and improving existing IC products, (ii) establishing a research
and development centre and sales office in Suzhou, the PRC, (iii)
expanding PRC customer base and sales network and (iv) working capital
of the Group respectively. As at the date of this report, we do not
anticipate any change to the plan. During the Review Period, the Group
has applied the net proceeds as follows:
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Enhancing product development LA % Je At 5 WK B 85 8 R K
by diversifying into new IC products EREMEHIEEFERK
and improving existing IC products T B AY 5% LA 0 o B G A B 1 5.9 4.5
Strengthening R&D capabilities iR YN E YN AV S
by establishing a research and FEZERLRIEERER
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in Suzhou, the PRC 2 47 —
Expanding the customer base and sales #&F& /B B 89 & P 268 &
network in the PRC S A 2 0.6 —
Working capital ZiEES 0.1 0.1
11.3 4.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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1. Comparatively, there were less new IC product development
projects deployed due to the specification of market demand being
unclear, resulting in less actual spending. However, the completion
of development of several new IC models had been extended as the
process was prolonged due to customer evaluation, acceptance and
modification work, resulting in more actual spending. After
offsetting, the actual use of proceed was less than the expected
amount as stated in the Prospectus.

2. Visits had been made to Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou, the PRC by
the management of the Group during the Review Period. However,
in view of uncertain economic outlook in the PRC market, the
establishment of Suzhou office would be delayed until the market
becomes positive.

The remaining unused net proceeds as at 31 December 2012 were placed
as interest bearing deposits with licensed bank in Hong Kong and is
expected to be used as intended and as stated in the Prospectus.

Outlook

We are cognizant of the uncertainty of the global economy. The Group is
optimistic and cautiously confident that the economy will show slow
growth momentum over the coming year. The business prospect of the
Group, in particular for revenue from provision of ASIC Service, is likely to
be optimistic. The Group will focus its future development on IC products
for “green energy” devices. One example is LED Lighting Driver ICs for
energy saving lighting appliances. Other than LED Lighting Driver ICs, the
Group will continue to explore other potential green energy products.
Besides the green energy products, the Group will explore other new ASIC
products that will be demanded by its existing and new customers in
order to expand its product and customer base.

Nevertheless, we need to pay attention to the fact that on-going debt
crisis in Europe and slowing down of the PRC economy may further
increase competition and prolong stagnant demand in the IC industry,
which would adversely affect the performance of the Group. Hence, we
would also look for other business opportunities that will improve the
Group's profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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On 28 January 2013, the Company entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement for a proposed acquisition regarding major and
connected transaction in relation to a securities and consultancy business.
Meanwhile, the proposed acquisition is under progress and not yet
completed. Details are disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
28 January 2013, 27 February 2013 and 6 March 2013.

Looking forward, the Group will remain committed to the development of
our core business. Apart from enhancing IC product development and
strengthening R&D capabilities, the Group aims to expand its customer
base and sales network in the PRC. We would actively make substantial
progress to enhance growth and strive for potential and new business
opportunities.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERER/RRE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to
present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to uphold high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability and
corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the
interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the”CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as its own
code effective from 19 January 2012 (the “Listing Date”) upon the listing
of the Company and had complied with the CG Code for the year ended
31 December 2012.

Directors' Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules effective from the Listing Date.

On specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by the Directors upon the Listing Date to 31 December 2012.

Board of Directors

Composition

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors, including 1 non-executive
Director (Chairman), 4 executive Directors and 4 independent non-
executive Directors. An updated list of Directors identifying their role and
function has been published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The profiles of the Directors are set out in the section
"Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBET@®

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there were 7 Board meetings ~ £{/A2012%€ 12 B31BILEE R - B T AER 5 =
held in addition to circulation of written resolution. The composition of HZEHERIN BT TIAESTC ST B E
the Board and its members’ attendance record are shown below: AR NMEKEMNEFELEEMT

Attendance record of meetings held in 2012

RONFRETHEBHELE
Annual
General Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of member Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
MEER BERRAKE EEg® EBXKEEE FHZEEE REZEES

In number (in %)  Innumber (in %) Innumber (in %) In number (in %)  In number (in %)

RB(BEOX) RBENMHE) RBENHE) RBEOHIR) REEHX)

Total Number of Meetings 1 7 5 2 2
EIREAY (Note 2)

(Mt7E2)
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. Hui King Chun (Chairman) 11 5/7 N/A N/A N/A
AR (E ) (100%) (71%) A~ 3 A~ 3 i A
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer) 11 717 N/A N/A N/A
THBSE (TTHAR) (100%) (100%) i A i A i A
Mr. Liu Kam Lung 1,1 717 N/A N/A N/A
BEREXE (100%) (100%) 38 A 38 A T iE A
Mr. Liu Loi Ying 0/1 5/7 N/A N/A N/A
BRESEE (0%) (71%) i A i A i A
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming (Note 1) N/A 1/2 N/A N/A N/A
FREFEPIT) i A (50%) i A i A i A
Independent

Non-executive Directors

BIUFHITES
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong 11 5/7 5/5 2/2 2/2
GRS HE & (100%) (71%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson 11 5/7 5/5 2/2 2/2
PR & (100%) (71%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Ko Yin Wai 0/1 5/7 5/5 2/2 2/2
mEREEE (0%) (71%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo 0/1 5/7 5/5 2/2 2/2
RIGEEE (0%) (71%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Notes: M E
1. Mr. Lee Cheung Ming was appointed on 3 August 2012. 1. TREFLEN2012F8A3BHEE -

2. The Board held 4 regular Board meetings and 3 other Board meeting during 2. HER20MFNANALFER EEFRITT
the year ended 31 December 2012. AIREZEEHERMIREMNESEEH -

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAl SR £ B AR A A



21

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management
company'’s business and is collectively responsible for the company’s affair
under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should make

decision objectively in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) Setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the
Group’s strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(i) Diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
(i) Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  Dividend policy;

(v)  Material acquisitions and disposal;

(vi)  Reviewing and monitoring the Group's internal control systems; and

(vii)  Monitoring the performance of the Management.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERBRE @

Management

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management (the
The delegated functions and assignments are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior

“Management”).

to any significant transactions entered into by the above mentioned
officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and
making decisions on the following matters:

(i) Implementing the Group's policy and strategies as set by the Board;
(i) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i)  Closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance
with plans and budgets;

(iv)  Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control

systems in place; and

(v)  Managing the Group's day to day business.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence punsuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors were independent during the year.

Mr. Hui King Chun, being the non-executive director of the Company,
and Mr. Liu Kam Lung, being the executive director of the Company, are
also the executive director of and the non-executive director of Kith
Holdings Limited, which is the controlling shareholder of the Company
respectively. As at 31 December 2012, Mr. Hui King Chun and Mr. Liu
Kam Lung have interest of approximately 61.58% and approximately 0.1%
in Kith Holdings Limited respectively. Save as disclosed, there was no
relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) between Board members and in particular between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive.
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Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code effective on 1 April
2012, all the Directors were in compliance with the requirement thereof
and participated in continuous professional development during the year
ended 31 December 2012 in the following manner:

FEEXER

BIE202F4A 1 BRBRER 2 EE AT ZFA
1B EA651E B E2012F12 831 B L2 82H8
EEHETTURIZRATTEREZUTAHARSZ
HFEIERE -

Reading Attending
materials the seminar
relevant to Attending relevant to
directors' the seminar the skill of
duties and provided by the Director’s
responsibilities the Company position
HEAH HEEH
EERBER HEQA BeEREz
BEZEHR REzHEE B 1l 38 BE
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. Hui King Chun (Chairman) v v —
RS IR A ()
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer) v 4 v
FERBELE (TTREH)
Mr. Liu Kam Lung v v v
BaiEtE
Mr. Liu Loi Ying v v 4
BRE
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming* v v —
FREFLE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong v v v
BREX KL
Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson v v v
BRE St
Mr. Ko Yin Wai v v —
=ERELE
Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo v 4 v
RIGREE

* Appointed on 3 August 2012
FOR2012F8 A3EMERE
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hui King Chun and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Li Kwei Chung. The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separated and not executed
by the same individual to prevent power concentration on any one
individual.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the Directors are appointed for an initial term of one year and subject
to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with
the Company'’s articles of association. At each annual general meeting,
not less than one third of the Directors then in office shall retire and every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Board Committees

The Board has established the board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee,
all with specific terms of reference clearly defining the powers and
responsibilities of the respective board committees. All board committees
are required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation
to their decisions, findings or recommendations.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference that are in conformity of the requirements
of the CG Code which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the 4 independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, Mr. Chan Chi Kwong
Dickson, Mr. Ko Yin Wai and Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, and chaired by Mr.
Chan Sun Kwong.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, 5 audit committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 20 of this report.

The function of the Audit Committee include the following:

(i) Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(@  to be primarily responsible for make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any

questions of resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(©)  to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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(i) Review of the Company’s financial information (i) B %%

(@ to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial (a)
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year report
and/or quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them before submission to
the Board, focusing particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(2)  major judgmental areas;
(3)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(5)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding (ii)(a) above,

(1) the members of the Audit Committee should liaise with
the Board and senior management and the Audit
Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company’s auditors and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accountant,
compliance officer or auditors;
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(iii) Oversight of the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control
procedures

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

V)

(9)

0

0]

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. The discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management'’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to report to the Board on any matters above;

to consider other topics, as requested by the Board;

to review arrangements employee of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee should ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action; and
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(k) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relationship with the external auditor.

Major accomplishments in 2012 comprised of the following:

(@)  reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a quarterly and
annually basis;

(b) reviewed the external auditors’ significant findings and

management’ response to the recommendation raised;

(c)  reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and the
adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting function;

(d)  reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit scope
for 2012 and the letter of representation to be given by the Board;

(e)  considered and approved the 2012 external audit fees and
engagement letters; and

(f)  discussed the whistleblowing policy of the company.

The Group's internal control system is reviewed regularly by management.
With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system, during
the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had appointed Graham H.
Y. Chan & Co, as independent internal control reviewer, to review the
Group's internal control systems and recommending actions to improve
our internal controls.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was effective with the requirements of the CG
Code C.2.1 for the year ended 31 December 2012.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditors for the year

ended 31 December 2012.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year and recommended approval to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirement of the CG Code effective from the Listing Date. In accordance
with provisions set out in the CG Code are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is composed of the 4 independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, Mr. Chan Chi Kwong
Dickson, Mr. Ko Yin Wai and Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, and chaired by Mr.
Chan Sun Kwong.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, 2 remuneration committee
meetings were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 20
of this Report.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee includes:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent

procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board'’s corporate goal and objectives;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, person rights and compensation
payments,
termination of their office or appointment;

including any compensation payable for loss or

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non- executive directors;

(v)  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions

elsewhere in the Group;

(vi)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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(vii) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or remove of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

(viii) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Major accomplishments in 2012 comprised of the following;
(i) reviewed the remuneration policy and assessment system;

(i)  recommended to the Board with respect to director remuneration
of newly appointed Director, Mr. Lee Cheung Ming;

(i)  assessed performance of executive directors and approved the
terms of executive director’s service contract;

(iv)  recommended to the Board a salary and director fee adjustment for
2012.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference effective from the Listing
Date. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in
conformity with the requirements of the CG Code and are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the 4 independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, Mr. Chan Chi
Kwong Dickson, Mr. Ko Yin Wai and Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, and chaired
by Mr. Chan Sun Kwong.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, 2 Nomination Committee

meetings were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 20
of this Report.
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The role and function of the Nomination Committee includes:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the Chairman and the chief executive of the Company;
and

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive director at the general meeting, it
should set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting
why the Nomination Committee believes he should be elected and
the reasons why the Nomination Committee considers him to be
independent.

Major accomplishments in 2012 comprised of the following:

(i)

(i)

recommended to the Board with respect to the retirement and re-
election of Directors at the last annual general meeting held on 16
May 2012; and

recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr. Lee Cheung
Ming as executive director of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held 1 meeting for the purpose of reviewing the compliance of
corporate governance policies for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The duties of the Board include:

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the CG Report.

Major accomplishments in 2012 comprised of the following:

evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make appropriate amendments;

arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. was re-appointed as the auditors of the
Company and its subsidiaries at the annual general meeting held on 16
May 2012.

The fees in respect of audit and paid non-audit services provided by the
external auditor to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to approximately HK$380,000 and HK$30,000 respectively.
The non-audit service was the review of internal control system of the
Group. The Group also paid to the Company’s auditor of approximately
HK$393,000 for listing service in the year.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
Group’s financial statements to give a true and fair view. The
responsibilities of auditors in respect of the financial statements are set
out in the report of the auditors forming part of this Report.

Company Secretary

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company Secretary was Mr.
Liu Kam Lung.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Company Secretary are set
out in the “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Mr. Liu Kam
Lung to confirm that he took not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2012. The
Company is of the view that Mr. Liu has complied with Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Rights

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles”), and the applicable legislation and
regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM”) to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles; and

(i) if within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/
herself/themselves may do so, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the
Board

Except for email to info@minilogic.com.hk, shareholders may send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
headquarter and principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Unit 508-509, 5th Floor, IC Development Centre, No. 6 Science
Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Pak Shek Kok, Shatin, N.T.
Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 2776 9363, for the attention of the
Company Secretary .
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Procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Companies Law (Revised) of Cayman
Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may by means of Requisition convene an EGM
following the procedures set out above.

Investor Relationship

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
passed on 23 December 2011, the articles of association of the Company
were adopted in substitution for and to the exclusion of the then existing
articles of association of the Company with effect from and conditional
upon Listing, which took place on 19 January 2012.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2012, there
was no significant change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Directors

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hui King Chun, aged 62, is the Chairman of the Company. He was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 15 June 2011. Mr. Hui has been
a director of one subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device
Corporation Limited, since February 2007 and is also a director of all of
our subsidiaries. He provides advices to the Group in respect of the overall
strategic management and development of corporate policy and strategy
of the Group, without participating in the daily management of the
Group. Mr. Hui is currently the chairman and an executive director of Kith
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1201). He is the largest shareholder of Kith
Holdings Limited. Mr. Hui has over 33 years of experience in management
and manufacturing, including about 19 years of experience in printing
and packaging industry. As at 31 December 2012, he has an indirect
interest of approximately 61.58% in Kith Holdings Limited, being a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwei Chung, aged 43, is one of the founders of the Group, chief
executive officer, engineering director and compliance officer of the
Company. He was appointed as an executive Director on 15 June 2011.
Mr. Li has been a director of one subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic
Device Corporation Limited, since September 2004 and is also a director
of all of our subsidiaries. He is responsible for daily operations, research
and development activities, procurement and quality control of the Group.
Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree of Engineering and master’s degree of
Science in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in 1992 and
1998 respectively. He has over 18 years of experience in the
semiconductor field. Mr. Li was appointed as a member of the Information
and Communication Technology R&D Centre Technology Review Panel of
ASTRI for the years of 2011 and 2012. His responsibilities includes advising
ASTRI on improving the quality of ASTRI's R&D projects in terms of
technical merit as well as the commercialisation prospects and technology
transfer potential of the projects and assisting in evaluating the
effectiveness of funded projects in terms of assisting Hong Kong and Pearl
River Delta based companies’ to upgrade their technological
competitiveness. As at 31 December 2012, he held interest in 11,762,842
shares of the Company, representing approximately 5.88% interest of the
total issued capital of the Company.
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Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 49, is a finance director and the company secretary
of the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director on 31 March
2011. He has been a director of one subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic
Device Corporation Limited since February 2011 and is also a director of all of
our subsidiaries. Mr. Liu is responsible for accounting and finance
management, investor relation as well as company secretarial matters of the
Group. He has been a non-executive director of Kith Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1201) since October 2010. Mr. Liu obtained a Diploma of Business
Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong
Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990 and is currently an Associate of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an Associate of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of the United Kingdom, an Associate
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a full member of the Society
of Registered Financial Planners and an Associate of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. He has over 22 years of experience in the financial industry. As at
31 December 2012, Mr. Liu has interest of approximately 0.1% in Kith
Holdings Limited, being a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Liu Loi Ying, aged 35, was appointed as an executive Director on 15
June 2011. He is a director of one subsidiary of the Company, Minilogic
Investment Limited. Mr. Liu has been a R&D product manager and one of the
team leaders in the R&D Department of one subsidiary of the Company,
MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, since July 2003. He is responsible for
leading a team of engineers in R&D operations, and supporting sales and
marketing activities. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree of Engineering in
Computer Science and Computer Engineering and a master's degree of
Science in IC Design Engineering from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2001 and 2005 respectively. He has been working in the
semiconductor field for about 11 years.

Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, aged 41, was appointed an executive Director on 3
August 2012. He is responsible for business development of the Group in the
mainland China. Mr. Lee holds graduate certificate in Business Administration
from Beijing Economy Management College. He has more than 16 years of
experience in marketing, strategic management and business operation in the
mainland China. Mr. Lee worked for Xiamen Poyi Real Estate Company
Limited as development division manager from December 1996 to December
1998. He then worked for Xiamen Hong Du Park Hotel as deputy general
manager from January 1999 to December 2004. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Lee had worked for Hongasteel (Xiamen) Technology Company
Limited as general manager since January 2005. As at 31 December 2012, he
held interest in 2,500,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
1.25% interest of the total issued capital of the Company. Mr. Lee is brother-
in-law of Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, a substantial shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules).
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 December 2011. He is the company secretary of
Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8265). During the past
three years, Mr. Chan served as an independent non-executive director (from
July 2010 to November 2010) of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8109) whose shares are also listed on GEM and
served as executive director and company secretary of Sam Woo Holdings
Limited (now known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 2322), whose shares are listed on Main Board, for the period from
March 2003 to June 2011. Mr. Chan obtained a Diploma of Business
Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong
Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is currently a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chan has more than 20 years of auditing,
accounting and company secretarial experience. He is currently the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 December 2011. He is currently
a practising certified public accountant. Mr. Chan obtained a master’s
degree in corporate finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2004. He is currently a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Chan has been working in accounting field for about 14 years. He is
currently a member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.

Mr. Ko Yin Wai, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 December 2011. He currently is an enterprise
consultant for Dongguan Changping Qiaohui Lipeng Plastic & Hardware
Manufacturing Company (REEEFREEBEZEBASERM and a
marketing strategic consultant for Shenzhen Lanshuo Communication
Equipment Company Limited (&Y EEiE AR E B R A 7). Mr. Ko has
been working in the electronic consumer products industry for about 16
years. He is currently a member of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee.
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Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 December 2011. He currently is the managing
director and a responsible officer of King’s HT Securities Limited, a licensed
corporation under the SFO. Mr. Sung has been a Senator of Junior Chamber
International since 2005. He obtained a bachelor’s degree of Commerce in
Management and Marketing from Curtin University of Technology in Australia
in 2002. He also obtained a Master Degree of Accountancy from Lingnan
University in 2012. Mr. Sung has been awarded the distinction of an honorary
doctor in Business Administration from American Purlinton University on 12
January 2013. He is currently a member of Institute of Public Accountants.
Mr. Sung has been working in the securities industry for about 10 years.
Before entering into securities industry, He worked for several solicitors’ firms
in Hong Kong for about 17 years. Mr. Sung is currently a member of the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee.

Senior Management

Ms. Tong Suk Fun Sabrina, aged 49, is one of the founders of the Group.
She has been a director and the personnel and administration director of one
subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, since
January 2000. Ms. Tong is responsible for personnel and administration
management. She worked as HR and Administration Manager of a company
for the period from January 2000 to June 2003. As at 31 December 2012,
Ms. Tong held interest in 11,762,842 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 5.88% interest of the total issued capital of the Company.

Mr. Lam Nim Yin, aged 53, has been the marketing director of one
subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, since
March 2007. He is responsible for sales and marketing activities, logistic and
warehouse control. Mr. Lam has been working in semiconductor industry for
about 25 years. During the period from 1993 to 2009, he served as a director
of a company engaging in trading of electronics such as IC.

Company Secretary

Mr. Liu Kam Lung is the company secretary of the Company. For details of
his profile, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” under
this section.

Compliance Officer

Mr. Li Kwei Chung is the compliance officer of the Company. For details of
his profile, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” under
this section.

REBEKE 525 R2011F12A238 X
TABIUFENTES MBETE2EFERRK
BEARAR(FEHFRBEHELTESEE
E)WMEFHBLCIERABEAE - RELEH2005
FRLOTEHESTFEEMNR2E 8 - 172002
FEBNBENSASEEBEETERTS
BEL BN IR0 FEERRASER
@t EE L2 R2013F1 8128 R4
EEEAETMBEALRFIHEBRLBHE LK
fre Il BBMNAKLEFHEIBEEE - RELE
RESFTEIEHBIOF - RMABHFTE
Al b BN BB L REMELT TIENI17E -
REXABRATHEZES REZEGRER

ZEEMKE -

SREEAE

BRF L 495 RASEEIWRAZ — il
H2000F1 A AR QR — MM EQRMRA S
BERAGNESERIASTRITHBAE 5K
TEEASENTHRER - b R2000F1AE
20036 AHEEE—HARMANERKRIT
BT o R2012F 128318 S LB AR
KRAF1,762,8R BB TP HEEER  HER
RRATEBEITRALENL)5.88% R # ©

MEZBEE 535 H200/F3ARAEARR
A—HENBARMASHBRARMNEHE
E-MmBEHEREHEY VWEKEETE
oo MR FBEEITE TEA25F o 781993
FE2009FHE  HFE—RBRARZES - %
AANREEFEM(WEKRER)ES -

RAEME

BEEXERADRANARAME - BRMH
BEFE H2HAHMIRITES K-

EXXE

FHBAESARAMNERTIE  BREMH
BEFE #2HAGRTESE —R-

Annual Report F # 2012



40

Directors’ Report
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The directors (“Directors”) of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) are pleased to present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Principal Activities and Geographical
Analysis of Operation

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

An analysis of the group’s performance for the year by segment
information is set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 55.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity” and note 25(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company's reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2012,
as calculated under Section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, was
approximately HK$6,902,000.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Four Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group for
the last 4 years ended is set out on page 9 of the annual report
Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2012.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Opition Scheme of the Company adopted during the
year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statement.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hui King Chun (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Kam Lung

Mr. Liu Loi Ying

Mr. Lee Cheung Ming (appointed on 3 August 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong

Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson
Mr. Ko Yin Wai

Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo

In accordance with the Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, who was appointed during the year
ended 31 December 2012, and shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Pursuant to the Article 84 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson, Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
and Mr. Liu Loi Ying shall retire from office as Directors by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting respectively. Other than Mr. Liu Loi
Ying and Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson who have indicated not to seek
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the other
retiring Directors, namely Mr. Lee Cheung Ming and Mr. Chan Sun
Kwong, being eligible, have agreed to offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from
their respective dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter from
year to year until terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by
either party on the other party.
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Directors’ Services Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Profiles of Directors’ and Senior Management
Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out
on pages 36 to 39 of this report.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the

Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Remuneration of Directors and Five
Individuals with Highest Emoluments
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with

highest emoluments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of the Company

R2012F 128318 BARRREZFLBEK
PlE3EFEME LM IEARR R
EBBARZHAERAR([BRA]) R EEIER
FTARRIES A6 IEMER LT BT AT RNE
$ CHEBMERN EERERTERAEBRA

NEIREHBEEZE(TEEREFS KBAEGA([F
FREBEED) EXVE) MG - B G k&
FHRERNMREWT ¢

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held the Company
HAR AT
e BT ERITRA
= B EEMtE ZRERHEE WEDL
Mr. Hui King Chun Interest of a controlled company (Note) 78,018,829 39.01%
FF AR 5T A DA E S (M)
Mr. Li Kwei Chung Beneficial owner 11,762,842 5.88%
FHBESA EmEBA
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming Beneficial owner 2,500,000 1.25%
FREEE E=EBA

Note: These shares are beneficially owned by Kith Technologies Limited, which is
wholly owned by Kith Enterstand Limited; Kith Enterstand Limited is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Kith Limited, which is wholly owned by Kith Holdings
Limited; Mr. Hui King Chun has an indirect interest of 61.58% in Kith
Holdings Limited.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAl SR £ B AR A A

MT3E : 3% 5 B% 19 d Kith Technologies Limited & 25 % A&
i Kith Enterstand Limited & & # /& : Kith Enterstand
Limited 2 Kith Limited ) 2 E B A 7] - R EESE
EAERARZERS MAKKEERHERSER
EEEBRARIKG61.58% 1 m °



Directors’ Report (continued)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors
of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than a director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

B ESCATIESN 2012512 A310  HiEES
HEEITBRAERARFSETMAEREE(T
EZRABEAENEEKEMEXVI) 2R - BERK
LEHFTHAALENANRRRIEESFRPEK
PlE3S2ETFBE 2 ELMAKIBEAER TR
AES46IR1ER EMEBET AN kNEER 5%
Al

W BE IR 10 TG 35 B9 R B

REANEMEBRA - AAF - HZERQASKHEAE
AMHEARRARMERARAMEES -T2 EE
MZH BMEARREEAEBEAARRALER
Hi)ZB OB g ESFMES M -

R2012F 12 A318 » ARRIRIEBEESF KB E K
FEBKRFEMNECMET  UTALBRARA
NESXBERITHRABINEERRRRG XIE
B RESIAR
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Long positions

Ordinary shares of the Company

Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held Company
=R NN
Fise T EBRITRA
RER BB 513 HmtE ZEREA WAL
Kith Technologies Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 78,018,829 39.01%
EmEE AT
Kith Enterstand Limited Interest of a controlled company (Note 1) 78,018,829 39.01%
EEEE RS (1)
Kith Limited Interest of a controlled company (Note 1) 78,018,829 39.01%
EEEE RS (1)
Kith Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled company (Note 1) 78,018,829 39.01%
BEEEBRAF EEHEE RS (1)
Richly Global Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 27,489,276 13.74%
EnEA A PFE2)
Mr. Cheng Tun Nei Interest of a controlled company (Note 2) 27,489,276 13.74%
BEERE EEHEE RS (H52)
China Angel Fund Beneficial owner 12,500,000 6.25%
EREAA
Ms. Tong Suk Fun Sabrina Beneficial owner 11,762,842 5.88%

Z IS Lt

Notes:

(1) These shares are beneficially owned by Kith Technologies Limited, which is (1)
wholly owned by Kith Enterstand Limited; Kith Enterstand Limited is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Kith Limited, which is wholly owned by Kith Holdings

Limited.

(2)  These shares are beneficially owned by Richly Global Investments Limited,  (2)
which is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no other interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO.

BEmEA A

fEE

BERARZEREE -

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAl SR £ B AR A 7

B EXPrREEE SN

% % B% 17 B Kith Technologies Limited & 25 # B + H
Fi Kith Enterstand Limited 2 & # & : Kith Enterstand
Limited 2 Kith Limited ) 2 BB A 7] - R EESE

% % I 15 | Richly Global Investments Limited & %5 #f

 HbBEREE2EHS -

R2012F12 8318 BREXR
NEEBREFRBEGOEIBCEMTE ZER
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The approximate percentages in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the year are as follows:

TBREFRHER

AEENEIEEFPRERARGEAFEHRE LK
BOMOBOLWT

Sales Purchases

HE g

The largest customer BREF 49% N/A 71~ A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREPFER 78% N/A T3 A
The largest supplier BAMHIERE N/A N 34%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHEE G N/A T3 A3 80%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Connected Transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2012 are disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. The transactions do not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
since its shares became listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange on 19 January 2012 and up to the date of this report.

FF REIBRATREARTFAAEEA
AABS% T RRBEFERARERAES K
{8 ) £ T35 o

EEEHN

AEER ARABLEEZREBXETERNSES
MERRITREERIXFAEERMGL -

BERXS

AEBEREZE2012F12A31HIEFEILEKRE
BEATZRIREEATHERERWTEFE29HERE -
BEBEEER ITRIE-_TE EEIHTFTAE
HEXFAFEBERINEERBAME) °

REHLABRERE
REARFMGANRRESHO ART AR

R FR2012F 1 A19B8 RNEE X FRBI R E i &
HEAREAH —ERBEEHLARERE -
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Interest in a Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2012, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group or any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company, Ample Capital
Limited, as at 31 December 2012, except for (i) Ample Capital Limited's
participation as the sponsor and its affiliated company, Ample Orient
Capital Limited as one of the joint lead managers in relation to the Listing;
(i) the compliance adviser agreement entered into between the Company
and Ample Capital Limited dated 29 December 2011and (iii) the financial
adviser agreement entered into between the Company and Ample Capital
Limited dated 21 January 2013 in respect of the Proposed Acquisition,
neither Ample Capital Limited or its directors, employees or associates had
any interest in relation to the Group.

Non-competition Undertaking

In relation to the non-competition undertaking dated 29 December 2011
(the “Undertaking”) given by Mr. Hui King Chun, Kith Holdings Limited
and each of the executive directors of the Company (collectively the
""Covenantors”’) in favour of the Company and set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 December 2011, the Covenantors made the annual
declaration on the compliance with the Undertaking in this annual report
as follows:

(@)  Kith Holdings Limited did not, and procured each of its subsidiaries
and associates not to, engage in or be interested or otherwise be
involved in any business presently carried on by the Group or any
other business that may be carried on from time to time during the
term of the Undertaking;

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAl SR £ B AR A A

REFRBHER

HE202FNANBLEFE BERXAFTNE
E IEEBRERMASENBEA(TERAIER
WA REREEEBEE B BEBK A
EERBEFNECMESTEE T Mg MER
EEEEMEAMT EEZR -

ERERNER

MINARAAEREEERREBRATMNEL
2012912 A318 - BOLTEBEFETREA
N E BF B A &) Ample Orient Capital Limited & £ fF —
B E 2R SRS A 0 (DR 2011412 A29 B AR &
B e B G IR A A E] 3B A R EE RS 5 R (i) R
2013F1A21BARRAREEMEBR A AL
EHEZWESENEERBEN ZRHE
ERAFFEES BEEAHEAMEHE AR
SEBBENEMERS -

T F A

MEBEFEREE BREEERAFAERARASF
BITES(RBARAIZHEARB AL R20115F12A
29ALAARRAF BXm AN FFAGE(FE]
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(b)

that he/she/it did not and procured that none of his/her/its
associates (other than the Group) would, either on his/her/its own
account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, directly or indirectly be interested or engaged in or
acquire or hold any rights or otherwise involved in (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) any business in all the countries and
regions presently carried on by the Group or any other business that
may be carried on from time to time during the term of the
Undertaking (“Business”);

if he/she/it and/or any of his/her/its associates (other than the
Group) was offered or became aware of any opportunity in relation
to the Business, whether directly or indirectly, he/she/it would have
notified the Company of such opportunity, provide such information
as is reasonably required by the Company as soon as practicable in
order to enable it to come to an informed assessment of such
opportunity and used his/her/its best endeavours to procure that
such opportunity is offered to the Company on terms no less
favourable than the terms on which such opportunity is offered on
him/her/it and/or his/her/its associates (other than the Group); and

he/she/it provided all information necessary for the enforcement of
the Undertaking and made this annual declaration on the
compliance with the Undertaking in this annual report.

Event after Reporting Period

Details of material subsequent events of the Group are set out in note 31

to the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Governance Report

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 19 to 35 of this report.

Mr. Li Kwei Chung whose biographical details are set out on page 36 of

this report, is the Compliance Officer of the Company and Mr. Liu Kam

Lung whose biographical details are set out on page 37 of this report, is
the Company Secretary of the Company.
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Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Graham H.Y. Chan & Co.
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Hui King Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
s

GRAHAM H.Y. CHAN & CO.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
HONG KONG

SER
MBatis

P ENEs

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MEGALOGIC TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 53 to 120, which comprise the
consolidated and the Company’s statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BEASREEERARAZERR
(RESHBEMALZ R LA

EEODERIENESBENEEZE SR ERE
RARl([ERa)REMBAR A THBIESE
BD®MGREMBHRE  LEPHERERBIEN2012
FNRANANGEEUBRAIRRE ERARZHT®
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BfE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B 3 & B R )

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Rooms 3719-26, 37/F., Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

19 March 2013

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAl SR £ B AR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SeEEZHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012 12 A31 HIFF/Z

2012 2011
20124 201148
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T T
Revenue I &= 7 31,281 59,134
Cost of sales of integrated circuits and HESKER R
provision of integrated circuits P
packaging service 31 AR 7% 1 A AR (24,559) (36,551)
Gross profit ER 6,722 22,583
Other income HlA 8 1,749 3
Staff costs B TA (6,071) (4,764)
Depreciation we (1,293) (1,255)
Operating lease rental — land and buildings KEHERS
— Tt REF (386) (369)
Other operating expenses H A& &= (9,199) (3,190)
Expenses incurred in connection with listing EMREERAY (9,272) —
Finance costs Bl & Ak A 10 — )
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFT SRR (B1E), S8R (17,750) 12,999
Income tax credit/(expenses) FiEHiEeE(Fx) 11 539 (2,203)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR) HF 12 (17,211) 10,796
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company XA Rl A A fE(L
(BB, &7 (17,211) 10,796
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for theyear F£E2E (F#E),
&3 L0 (17.211) 10,796
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable RXATHEAAEL
to owners of the Company SR (EE) &R 16
Basic and diluted (cents) AR K #58 () (HK8.71) cents HK7.20 cents

4l

Al
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R

As at 31 December 2012 R2012412831H

2012 2011
20124 20114
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET FHET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERFK 17 3,118 3,443

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 6,566 3,972
Trade receivables U E SRR 19 8,041 20,381
Deposit and prepayments e RENFKIE 20 1,406 10,182
Tax recoverable A Y [ 7 18 991 991
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRRE 21 43,901 7,635
Total current assets WRBEE 60,905 43,161
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables FEAT B 5 & H M FE - BR 3K 22 3,601 2,754
Total current liabilities BREBEE 3,601 2,754
Net current assets BARABEE 57,304 40,407
Total assets less current liabilities MEERRBERS 60,422 43,850

Non-current liabilities kR EE
Deferred taxation IEE B IE 23 — 539
Net assets BEE 60,422 43,311

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital A% A< 24(a) 20,000 380
Share premium 1% 19 4 (B 14,702 —
Reserves = 25(a) 25,720 42,931
Total equity B 60,422 43,311

Li Kwei Chung
B
Director

EBEE

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z= £l & &l &£ E A R 2 7

Liu Kam Lung

BEE
Director

EE



Statement of Financial Position

B 755K O &

As at 31 December 2012 R2012412831H

55

2012 2011
20124 20114F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHRBRRZEKE 32(a) = —
Current assets REEE
Prepayment B RIA — 249
Amount due from a directly owned subsidiary Bl —HEERED
N NEIE e 32(b) 380 380
Amount due from an indirectly owned subsidiary el —REREEEERN
M8 A 7 &9 R IE 32(b) 48 —
Bank and cash balances 1T RIR SR 41,481 232
Total current assets BREBEE 41,909 861
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to an indirectly owned subsidiary AN —EEEEES
N PNEI e 32(b) — 510
Other payables H th & 1+ 5118 305 311
Total current liabilities BREEE 305 821
Net current assets BEREBEE 41,604 40
Net assets BEE 41,604 40
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital B& 2N 24(a) 20,000 380
Share premium &% 15 % B 25(b) 14,702 =
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) REEBAN(R:tEE) 25(b) 6,902 (340)
Total equity ERHARE 41,604 40
Li Kwei Chung Liu Kam Lung
THR
Director
2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

Asset
Share Share Merger revaluation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
a6 BESEM
BAE BROEE & & R 8 5 &&t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 55 FHERT FTAET FTHET FHET FHExT THERT
Balance at 1 January 2011 R2011FE1B 1B &8 * 6,249 2,072 — 173 14,021 22,515
Changes in equity for the year B ZE2011%12A318
ended 31 December 2011: LFENERSE:
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNERE2E K S
income for the year Rk — — — — 10,796 10,796
Allotment and issue of consideration A% B 5 &
shares and credited as fully paid BITRERD R
for share swap ABRFIER 2 24(a)(a-b) 380 = (380) = — —
Share allotment of MiniLogic HK WAlm B Z B ) it 8 * 1,402 8,598 = = — 10,000
Exchange of share upon group SEEEHEIBRNER
reorganization 24(a)(a-b)" (7,651) (10,670) 18,321 — — —
Balance at 31 December 2011 MR2011F128318 &
and 1 January 2012 2012F1A1B &8 380 — 17,941 173 24,817 43,311
Changes in equity for the year B ZE2012F12A31A
ended 31 December 2012: LEENEZES:
Loss and total comprehensive FEEEBIREMEER
loss for the year Pk = = = = (17,211)  (17,211)
Issue of shares upon Capitalisation B AR EITIRMD 24(a)(d) 14,620  (14,620) — — — —
Issue of shares upon Placing it & B 1TAR 5 24(a)(e) 5,000 35,000 — — — 40,000
Expenses incurred in connection FRBETRHEED
with the issue of shares =53
during the year — (5,678) — — — (5,678)
Balance at 31 December 2012 A2012F12 8318 & & 20,000 14,702 17,941 173 7,606 60,422
* MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited (“MiniLogic HK”) was incorporated ~ * A= BB R DR (HRAlS RBH) 5 T K R &

with an authorized share capital of HK$10,000,000 of 10,000,000 shares
HK$1.0 each and 6,249,027 shares of HK$1.0 each were issued prior to 1
January 2010. On 28 February 2011, 1,402,173 shares of HK$1.0 each were
issued at an aggregate subscription price of HK$10,000,000. According to
the share swap agreement between the Company, Minilogic Investment
Limited (“Minilogic BVI”) and the then equity holders of MiniLogic HK on 20
December 2011, the total share capital of 7,651,200 shares and the entire
share premium balance of MiniLogic HK was reallocated to merger reserve
for the group reorganization.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l SRl &E B AR 2 7

5 T B AN 410,000,000 7T+ 9 410,000,000 f% &
BREEI1.0BTHRD - 46,249,027 TR E
E1.08 T RRMDE R2010F1A1B AT ETT B
201142 A28 A « #2428 7R# {8 10,000,000/ JT % 17
1,402,173 B R EE1.0B TG - KB —1H
A 2 &)+ Minilogic Investment Limited ([ Minilogic
BVID RMAI SR ERERIT A AR2011EF

12A20BFT UM BB HE A Si 2R RKkA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

57

2012 2011
20124 2011 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FAT
Operating activities RETH
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (E18), % F (17,750) 12,999
Adjustment for: KA -
— Finance cost — R & AR = 9
— Interest income — MEHA (355) 3)
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment —WE BERREBEINE 1,293 1,255
— Reversal of allowance for impairment on trade — B E 5 AR FOR (B B E o
receivables = (17)
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and —HEYE BEEKEKDS
equipment (221) =
— Provision for slow- moving and obsolete — I RBRTERE
inventories 648 136
Operating cash flows before REtEEESEEHA
working capital changes KERERE (16,385) 14,379
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEMm, md (3.242) 5,463
Decrease/(increase) trade receivables e & 5 B FOR D, (B n) 12,340 (7,851)
Decrease/(increase) in deposit and prepayment e RIENMNRIER D (38 m) 8,776 (7,355)
Increase in trade and other payables JERNE S KkEAM
J& A5F BR SRR N 847 562
Decrease in trade payable to a fellow subsidiary EN—ERRWEBARZ
B 5 BT = (1,390)
Decrease in amount due to an intermediate holding R —RPREERARZ
company FRIER = (134)
Cash generated from operations EXEEEZHS 2,336 3,674
Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid ENEBENEN = (5,492)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities RE (AR EEEH2FRS 2,336 (1,818)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

mEEERER®

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

2012 2011
20124 20114F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Investing activities REZH
Payment for purchase of property, plant and BEDE HBEKX

equipment BN (1.311) (2,147)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BEEREZ

plant and equipment FT 5 5k I8 564 =
Interest received 24 F 8 355 3
Net cash used in investing activities ARRETEZERE (392) (2,144)
Financing activities MEEH
Repayment of bank advances under BREMBEZERZRITER

discounted bills — (3,894)
Decrease in advance from Innovation and KEBIFBFHESZBTRD

Technology Fund — (398)
Proceeds from issue of shares by a subsidiary —HMBARETRG Z

BT 18 3R — 10,000

Interests on bank borrowings paid B2 ERITERF B — )
Issue of shares BT D 34,322 =
Net cash from financing activities REMETEZ2FES 34,322 5,699
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBRSESEYFEM 36,266 1,737
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M1B1BNBRSRESEEY 7,635 5,898
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December MR12A31MEMNERERASEEY 43,901 7,635
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br IS ¥R MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31 March
2011, as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box
1350 Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is located at Unit 508-509, 5th Floor, IC
Development Centre, No.6 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong
Science Park, Pak Shek Kok, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company'’s shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 19 January 2012 (“Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activity of its subsidiaries (together with the Company referred to as
the “Group”) is the provision of Integrated Circuit (“IC") solutions
and is engaged in design, development and sales of ICs. The details
of particulars of subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 31.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and all value are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Reorganisation and Basis of Preparation

Through a reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the Group
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company has since 20 December 2011
become the holding company of its subsidiaries now comprising the
Group. Details of the Reorganisation are fully explained in the
paragraphs headed “The Reorganisation” of the section headed
“History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” to the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2011 (the
“Prospectus”) in connection with the Listing and in note (2) to the
consolidated financial statements of annual report 2011.

—BER

RARR201ME3 A31 A IRIERH S HSE0
ERNERRFEREHSTMK LA —M
BREEREELF - ARAIFMBPERM
A Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands * 1
EFXrZE XM MadimAlEEAA
BEANEZEREANBACTEKERMAESD
D512 508-509 % °

ARARKMHBE2012F1 8198 REFT BB A
RGFERAR (B AIZEREM ([ £
ml) e

ARRA D —HEREZERAR LM ER A
(ERARBABIAKRENNEIZXBRIR
HERER(TRKER]) WBRIRTT R ALK
EEREBRNRT HEREE -AHAR
G- GRS NG EA

BAVBREAERBANDEEEE T
BT 2% BEEEAEN FEER
PVERBEREKEOTET -

EARmREE

AREBARRARO LETMERNSEERBEE
TEBREA(TEADZ  ARAAH2011F
12A20HEKX ARFEAXASEBZWEAQ
AIMEKR AR - EAFBHENAARBEHA
201112 A30BEM EmMBRER(HRE
BDIES SHERARIZEE]—H[E=8]—
BLAR20MFFR2EEMBREMEQ) -
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Reorganisation and Basis of Preparation
(Continued)

As the companies now comprising the Group were controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders before and after the Reorganisation,
the Reorganisation was accounted for as a business combination of
entities under common control. The consolidated financial
statements has been prepared based on the principles and
procedures of merger accounting in accordance with Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Accordingly, the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of financial
position, consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows are prepared as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the reporting
years rather than from the date of incorporation of the Company.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZZ &l S &l &£ B & R 2 &
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

3 Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(b) The adoption of new and revised HKFRS

HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs,
which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2012. The Group has adopted the new and
revised HKFRSs which are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and are pertinent to its
operations and relevant to these consolidated financial
statements. The application of these new and revised HKFRSs
has no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012.

The Group has not applied any new standards, amendments
or interpretations that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

%‘M"‘TE%EM%

M REERERMBRE
-%EJE’JFEFFJ
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BRI BB B HREER - WH20124F
1ﬂ1ayu&ﬁwmaﬁ%%$a
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EANFIIRCEBITE ST HREE
Bl o W EHET RGBT 2 BB ®
SREBHAEEHE2012F12 A31H
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AEE YW ERBEFEE AT S A B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

3 Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(0

Impact of issued but not yet effective

HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that potentially relevant to the Group’s
financial statements but are not yet effective for the

accounting year beginning on 1 January 2012.

HKFRS 7
(Amendments)
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32
(Amendments)
HKAS 19 (2011)

HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27
(2011)
(Amendment)

HKFRS 1
(Amendments)

Annual
Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements®

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income'
Separate Financial Statements?

Investment in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Employee Benefits?

Investment Entities?

Government Loans?
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

3 Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(0

Impact of issued but not yet effective
HKFRSSs (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose
information about rights to set-off and related arrangements
(e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide
users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect
of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply
to recognised financial instruments that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013. The application of the
amendments is unlikely to have any material financial impact
on the Group.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1
of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Entity shall classify financial assets as
measured at amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

3 Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(c) Impact of issued but not yet effective
HKFRSSs (Continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9
to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and
incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles
of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions
were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while
changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option (“FVO"”). For these financial liabilities, the
amount of change in the fair value, which is attributable to
changes in credit risk should be recognized in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). The remainder of the change
in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation
of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk
in OCI would create an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9
from 1 January 2015. The Group will quantify the effect in
conjunction with other phases, when the final standard
including all phases is issued.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

3 Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(0

Impact of issued but not yet effective
HKFRSSs (Continued)

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities. It includes a new definition of control which is used
to determine which entities are consolidated. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group
to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities
are controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and HK(SIC)-
Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10
replaces the portion of HKAS 27 that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC)-
Int 12. Based on the preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS
10 is not expected to have any impact on the currently held
investments of the Group.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for
joint arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two
forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint
ventures, and removes the option to account for joint
ventures using proportionate consolidation. The application
of this new standard is unlikely to have any material financial
impact on the Group.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for

subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities previously included in
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates. It also introduces a number of new disclosure

requirements for these entities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

3 Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(0

Impact of issued but not yet effective
HKFRSSs (Continued)

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of HKFRS 10, provide further
relief from full retrospective application of these standards,
and limit the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative period. The
amendments clarify that retrospective adjustments are only
required if the consolidation conclusion as to which entities
are controlled by the Group is different from that under
HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which HKFRS 10 is applied for the first
time. Furthermore, for disclosures related to unconsolidated
structured entities, the amendments will remove the
requirement to present comparative information for periods
before HKFRS 12 is first applied.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December 2012
include a definition of investment entities and provide an
exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that
meet the definition of investment entities. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9, rather than
consolidate them. Consequential amendments were made to
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS
12 also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The Group expects that these amendments will not
have any impact on the Group as the Company is not an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

3 Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(c) Impact of issued but not yet effective
HKFRSSs (Continued)

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and
HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011), HKAS 28 (2011), and the
subsequent amendments to these standards issued in July
and December 2012 from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of guidance for fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard
does not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair
value should be applied. The Group expects to adopt the
standard from 1 January 2013. The application of this new
standard is unlikely to have any material financial impact on
the Group.

HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that may be reclassified (or recycled)
to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, net
gain on hedge of a net investment, exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow
hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial
assets) would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains and losses
on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and
buildings). For the Group, the amendments will affect
presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

3 Application of New and Revised Hong 3
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(0

Impact of issued but not yet effective

HKFRSs (Continued) 7% i & 2 Al E’ﬂ% E“(,%E)
HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has B ERENRE (B EEIE AT

a legally enforceable right to set-off” and that some gross BERAAAEEBRHEIRITZHBEER] 2

settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net A ﬁﬁ 2D 4a %E #E B AT RE AR

settlement. The amendments are not expected to have any BERNFHEEE NEBEKH2014

impact on the financial position or performance of the Group F1AVABRRMAZZMERT  MxEE

upon adoption on 1 January 2014. HESZO ?MK SEOBBRAIEKIR
BRER 2

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.
There are separate transitional provisions for each standard.
While the adoption of some of the amendments may result in

changes in accounting policies, none of these amendments EH e

are expected to have a significant financial impact on the N

Group:

(@)  HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies (a)
the difference between voluntary additional

comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the previous period. An
entity must include comparative information in the
related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond
the previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete set of
financial statements. In addition, the amendment
clarifies that the opening statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or makes
reclassifications, and that change has a material effect
on the statement of financial position. However, the
related notes to the opening statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the preceding period
are not required to be presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

3 Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(c) Impact of issued but not yet effective
HKFRSSs (Continued)

(b)  HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Clarifies that
major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet
the definition of property, plant and equipment are
required to be classified as property, plant and
equipment, and classified as inventory when the
definition is not meet.

() HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes.

HKAS 19 (2011) “Employee Benefits” includes a number of
amendments that range from fundamental changes to simple
clarifications and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined benefit
pension plans including removing the choice to defer the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes
include modifications to the timing of recognition for
termination benefits, the classification of short-term employee
benefits and disclosures of defined benefit plans.

4 Significant Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise their
judgments in the process of applying the accounting policies.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately
may differ from those estimates. The areas involving critical
judgments and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements are disclosed in note 5 to
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under

the historical cost convention, except for property, plant and

equipment which is measured at revalued amounts, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra- group transactions, balances, income, expenses and
unrealized gains on transactions between Group entities are
eliminated on consolidation. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Company has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies, so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

Interests in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost or
fair value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting year.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss during the financial year in which
they are incurred.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of an asset is
recognised in other comprehensive income, and accumulated
under the heading of asset revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
held in the asset revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the asset revaluation reserve is
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost or revalued amounts
over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose during the
reporting year are as follows:

Computer 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Instruments 20%
Office equipment 30%
Motor vehicle 30%

Leasehold improvement Over the lease term
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE2012F12H31HILFE

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the asset is derecognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold or services provided in the normal course of
business, net of returns and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Revenue from the sales of goods
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

(ii) Revenue from the provision of integrated
circuits packaging service
Revenue from the provision of integrated circuits
packaging service is recognized in the period in which
the relevant service is provided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 BERESFTHEEm@m
(d) =R @

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Revenue from fixed-price contracts
Revenue from fixed-price contracts for the provision of
application specific integrated circuit service (“ASIC
Service”) is recognized under the percentage of
completion method, which is based on the services
performed to date as a percentage of the total services
to be performed under the relevant contract.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimates future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

(e) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
year.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Taxation (Continued)

()

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting year and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised. The measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting year, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Operating lease

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as operating
leases. Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Lease should
recognise the aggregate benefit of incentives as a reduction
of rental expense over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, calculated on the first-in, first-out basis,
comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the year in which
the related revenue is recognized. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of
inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognized as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the year in
which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All the Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The accounting policies adopted for the Group’s
financial assets are set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 BEREFTHEm

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At the end of each reporting year subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment on financial assets below), unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting year. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been impacted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 BEREFTHEm

(h) €I Bu@m

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include: (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty; (ii) default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; (iii) it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization;
or (iv) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Financial assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually, such as trade receivables, are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in the subsequent years.
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B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continuedy 4 E K BE @
(h) =M T A m

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 BAEFTBE@
€@ TR um

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the relevant group
entities are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and short-term bank deposits with an
Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

original maturity period of three months or less.

integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting year, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial assets
above) to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is

treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting year,
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

monetary items

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting year, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that year, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(1)

(m)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the year in which they are incurred. During the reporting

year, all borrowing costs have been expensed.

Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Employee leave entitlement
The cost of accumulating compensated absences is
recognised as an expense and measured based on the
additional amount that the Group expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
as at the end of the reporting year.

Retirement benefits scheme
The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes for those employees who
are eligible to participate. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

Contribution for Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is
made based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ relevant monthly income from the Group
and the contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z Al S & £ B A R A 7

4 BEREFTHEm

\)

(m)

fa A

B REREEARBEE(HB
B — BB R ML TR B AR
EMAE)EEABOERREG N
AEMAENRAT HEAEAK
EAEE e ARLE -

AEMERKAIREFEENFR
EHEGETER RBEFE EE
HRAEGE T8 o

BERA

() EEKREBREF
REAEBER AR RAX LRE
AEEBEFERERENBEFRK
155 P R A5 V) T 8 S 1+ B BB SMNBR
BAtHE o

(i) EIRFBRETE
AEEREERZENEHER
2 8 FUE HBUR KR AIGH 8 - &
BZEERAKEZEEDHR
B YHBIERESRE -

mHERTEEF I HRRIELE
EEREANEENHEREAKRAN
AR - NIRRT 3 W
HAIRK RS R RN AR S IR
mRER e



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

B AETBER @)

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4

(n) Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

—  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

—  how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.

During the reporting year, all research and development
expenditure has been expensed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parents.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

4 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third party;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

5

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, management is required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that year or in the year of the revision and future year if the revision
affects both current and future years.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting year that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade receivables, including
the aging analysis of the trade debts, the current creditworthiness
and/or the past collection history of each debtor. Impairment arises
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debt
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the actual result
is different from the original estimate, such difference will have
impact on the carrying value of the trade receivables and doubtful
debt expenses in the reporting year in which such estimate has
been changed.

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is made based
on the aging and estimated net realizable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgment and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and the allowance charge/write-back in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and equipment
with respect to depreciation, management estimates the useful lives
of various categories of property, plant and equipment based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of assets of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group recognises provision for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as
contingent liability in a note to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

6 Financial Instruments 6

(a) Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and

ERMITH

() eMIANSE

AEBREREFANEREESRE

liabilities as at the end of each reporting year are as follows: BEREELAT
2012 2011
2012 20114
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Group wE
Financial assets: TREE:
Loans and receivables: B & B EE
— Trade receivables —RBKRESHER 8,041 20,381
— Bank balances and cash —iRITEHR RIS 43,901 7,635
51,942 28,016
Financial liabilities: cEWAsE:
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: 1ZEE S ANt EN S R A & -
Trade and other payables JERTE 5 K H b FE T BR 3K 3,221 2,354
2012 2011
20124 20114F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Company b N
Financial assets: TREE"
Loans and receivables: Bk & B R
Amount due from a directly owned R —EEEZEEEN
subsidiary Bt 8 A B 89 5RIE 380 380
Amount due from an indirectly owned FEW —HREEEE S
subsidiary Bt 8 A R 8 5RI8 48 —
Bank balances and cash RITEHBRERS 41,481 232
41,909 612
Financial liabilities: cRmEE:
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: IZ# K A EN LR B E -
Amount due to an indirectly owned Ef—MEHEEZFEEN
subsidiary B 8 N Rl R FRIA = 510
Other payables H b fE A 5R8 25 1
25 521
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For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

6

Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are described below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk include United States dollars (“USD")
and Renminbi (“RMB”). In addition, certain bank
balances of the Group are also denominated in USD.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy with respect to its foreign exchange
exposure. However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposures and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

6 €@ IAam
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SNEHRHEK AT BEEES
ERSNERBRIEEREREZR
HhERSMNER B o

AEBEREREFRUIIESE
MEBEEREBABNKREE

at the end of each reporting year are as follows: N
2012 2011
20124 20114F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Assets BE
usb ET 8,877 22,910
RMB AR 262 450
Liabilities BE
usD ETT 1,494 1,793
RVB AR 738 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE2012F12H31HILFE

6 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange
fluctuation of the currencies of USD and RMB against
the currency of Hong Kong dollar (“HKD"). The
directors consider that the Group’s exposure to USD
does not give rise to significant foreign currency risk on
the ground that HKD is pegged to USD. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis of USD against the functional
currency of the respective group entity is disclosed.

A reasonably possible change of 5% in the exchange
rate between RMB and HKD would have no material
impact on the Group’s profit or loss during the
reporting year and there would be no material impact
on the Group’s equity as at the end of each reporting
year. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
RMB denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of respective reporting year for a 5%
change in the currency rate. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk in respect of
RMB internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the exchange rate of HKD against
RMB.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arises primarily from its variable-rate bank deposits.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on an
ongoing basis and will consider hedging interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z Al S & £ B A R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

6 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared based
on the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s
variable-rate bank deposits at the end of each reporting
year. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
these assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of
each reporting year were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease in interest
rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis throughout the reporting
year.

At the end of the reporting year, if interest rates had
been 100 basis points higher/lower in respect of the
Group’s variable rate bank deposits, with all other
variables held constant, there would have no significant
impact on the Group’s profit or loss during the
reporting year and on the Group’s equity as at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and bank deposits. As at 31 December
2012 and 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

The Group has a credit policy in place and will perform
credit evaluations on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. The Group also has an export credit
insurance with the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance
Corporation to cover risks on non-payment by
customers.

6 €@ IAam

(b)

(if)

(iii)

MBEEABEEEERBEX

(&)

I 2= = B ()

T &R E 4T
NTEEEITERSTREFR
AEBEZ A BEMERRITIE AT
KM EERRE - RREDT
BREANSBEFRERNZSE
BENRBEZBEREFHHEALE
RepmEEZEIRABRNIDER
) = [ B B {£ 100 18 £ Fh 7Y A
RERHTRE  ARKREEEF
MRS ABEAEES R
ERBEFEN DI AMER A
HERE -

RWMEFER WAEEZ 7] & F
KRITTFERZ A E EFBIE
1001EEZ (M prA H ] #H =
RETE) NEEBRBREFE
B i £ ok &5 1B N AN & B 122012
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BXENERTE -
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AEBECZEERREEERERE
WE ZERRIBITE > KR2012
FR2011F12A318 ER F
FREBTEEMBEARERE
R BIER Z & EERR AL
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TREECKREE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE2012F12H31HILFE

6 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
regularly to ensure that adequate allowance for
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the management of the Group considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the
Group's largest trade debtor accounted for 70% and
39% of its total trade receivables as at 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2011 respectively. In addition,
the Group's five largest trade debtors accounted for
94% and 86% of its total trade receivables as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 respectively.

The credit risk for liquid funds is limited because such
amounts are placed with various banks with good
credit ratings.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Group. In the management of
the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

During the reporting year, the Group financed its
working capital requirements principally by funds
generated from operations and issue of shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

6 Financial Instruments (continued)

HE2012F12H31HILFE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting year for its
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and

principal cash flows.

6 €@ IAam

(b)

BHEERBEEEREREE
(#0)

(iv) REBESRER @
TRENAEAREREFERS
MEBZADIEAIT TRE
BELBRABIABBRELSR
B UAAREREAENRNRE
AEARERR - RKNEEFNA
RXENRERE -

Repayable
on demand Between Total
or within Between 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
Group one month  1-3 months 1 year cash flows amount
BARERDY REGHR
R—EAR —fEBRE Z@AE ReRE
rEH i §:3 =@ AR —F B RESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2012 #2012 12A31H
Trade and other payables ERES KkEAMm
JE A BR X 3,221 — — 3,221 3,221
As at 31 December 2011 A2011%E12831H8
Trade and other payables BNESREAM
JE A5 BR X 2,354 — — 2,354 2,354
Repayable
on demand Between Total
or within Between 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
Company one month  1-3 months 1 year cash flows amount
BRERD REGHR
R—EAR S =Z@AE ReRE
| &g =@A —F B FRESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2012 7A2012612A31H
Other payables Hh fE A 0B 25 — — 25 25
As at 31 December 2011 R2011512H31H
Amount due to an indirectly Eft —BBEZEFEN
owned subsidiary fft B A 7 &) 7R I8 510 — — 510 510
Other payables H B8 < 5RIE 11 — — 11 11
521 — — 521 521
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE2012F12H31HILFE

6 Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of the Group'’s financial assets and financial liabilities
as reflected in the consolidated statements of financial

position approximate their respective fair values.

7 Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development and
sales of integrated circuits (“ICs"”). Revenue represents the amount
received and receivable for goods sold and services provided by the
Group at invoiced value, net of returns and discounts, during the

€®MT Em

() EMIBENAFE

AEBEERERA HREMBMRRR
RO AEENEREERSRE
REEEEESEENAFEMS -

I &

AEBTEREERERNRA - RENHE
- RSEAEERFERNERY RIEH
RFCWEERESENEREE  LNHRER
BRI AEBRFRE HER YD

year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue recognised during the year T

is as follows:

2012 2011
2012 20114
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Revenue from sales of ICs HEEKE KM K 25,192 44,713
Revenue from provision of IC packaging service RIERHFBEHRBEH K= 5,252 8,073
Revenue from provision of ASIC Service 2 ASIC iR 75 B9 W 5 837 6,348
31,281 59,134

Other Income 8 HftWg A
2012 2011
2012 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Interest income AMEMA 355 3
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEW % - B E &R & K= 221 —
Patents transfer income SR EEERA 965 —
Sundry income FIEIA 208 —
1,749 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥ 3% B & om)

For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

Segment Information

The chief operating decision maker considers that the Group’s
activities constitute one operating segment as all of the Group’s
operation relate to the design, development and sales of integrated
circuits. The management of the Group makes decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment on a group basis.
[t is determined that the Group has only one single reporting
segment, being the design, development and sales of integrated
circuits. As a result, no segment information other than the entity-
wide disclosure is presented.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from major products and
services is set out in note 8 above.

Information about major customers

The Group's revenue from customers which accounted for 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue are as follows:

7 EHE R

BEREERRERR BRAKBMRAERY
BERE  FARMEEEKEREGH  BA
SENEPEXN —EE-—KL208H AKE
MERBRERIEMRRFLERERE
BMEHRE AEERERAAE -—HEE—2
WO BIRAET HAEMBEEEKER - B
o RREEERELREIN YEZSHRDH
B# e

AR A X B E R MR 0 M D T 8
R XM S -
FREIEEFNESR

REEAEBBEKRZFI0%HIA EHEFH
AREBYEMT

2012 2011

20124 20114

HK$°000 HK$°000

F#& T FAT

Customer A Z2EA 15,355 18,098
Customer B =ZF5B 3,497 8,052
18,852 26,150
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

9 Segment Information (continued) 9

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location of the customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods or services. The geographical
location of the non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment. The
Group's revenue from external customers and information about its

HE2012F12H31HILFE

non-current assets by geographical location of the assets are set out

7 2 E E )

i 13 &

AEENEBLURER - BN ET
REZFOMAELTE  mH
MR - B R BB RREME © R
BEEMNMBUEDREBEEENER B
M€ - AEBERBEBUESDKBEIREP
MPRELEREFRBDEENEHNNT

D 3 BR 75

below:
Revenue from external customers REIMNAZEFH KSR
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) EFE(FEEH) 5,048 17,966
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong and Taiwan R TEEEEREE 23,094 30,293
Germany %= 5 248 2,142
Korea 14 1,565 4,201
Russia B 28 5 13 3,533
Taiwan = 822 999
Others H1th 491 —
31,281 59,134
Non-current assets ERTHE
2012 2011
2012 F 201148
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (BEH) 690 598
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong and Taiwan AR TEEEERAE 225 85
Taiwan = 2,203 2,312
Korea 4 — 448
3,118 3,443
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For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

97

10 Finance Costs 10 Rl & B A
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Interests on: IATEALE
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within 5 years ARAFANEHEEN
RITHE K = 9
11 Income Tax Credit/(Expenses) 11 IEHRER (%)
Income tax credit/(expense) recognized in profit or loss RIEFTPEROFERER/(FAX)
2012 2011
2012 20114
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERi T — BB FEREE
provision for the year B = (2,053)
Deferred tax (note 23) RIER 18 (M 5E23) 539 (150)
539 (2,203)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made since the Group has ARARERBZE2012F12A31 B L FE
no estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December I 4 B A AR R A AT RERR Bl A - SR B R
2012. Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% ARG HEL &G - BE20114128318
based on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 LE 4 Z 0 BB 15 BB A 1 A ST R AR B
December 2011. FI#916.5% fE i °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

11 Income Tax Credit/(Expenses) (continued)

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to
the (loss)/profit before tax per the consolidated statements of

1 FEBES(BAX) @

AEENMFHRER) X AIEESE2H
W as 3k MBR B AT (B 1R), IR R B AR T -

comprehensive income as follows:

2012 2011
20125 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
(Loss)/profit before tax B i BT (5 18), 7 7 (17,750) 12,999
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 16.5% 1216.5% ) & FB AT 15 B Bt &
AHEMTRIE (2,929) 2,145
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for BBIEM 5 A R A
tax purpose M2 & 1,857 59
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose B IE T E EART A
kiR 34 - (58) (1
Deferred tax assets not recognized RERBEEFHEE 591 —
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year FEMESH(ER) FxX (539) 2,203
12 (Loss)/Profit for the Year 12 FE(F8), & F
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHTT
(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived FR(ER),&FE Mk
at after charging and (crediting): M GrA) -
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI 3 B 380 400
Cost of inventories recognized as an expense* BRIEAASINESER A 22,992 34,448
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BELERERTE 1,293 1,255
Legal and professional fee FRELEXEHR 703 682
Design and development fee HWETRHEEBRE 4,600 183
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BREEMEHEIXA
— Salaries, bonus and benefits in kind — e EAREYER 5,889 4,618
— Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund — R ESHRK 167 134
— Staff welfare —BIREA 15 12
Reversal of allowance for impairment FE U B 5 BR SRR 1B #
on trade receivables Ryl — (17)
@ including provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories of * B B & B 7 B 4)648,000% TT

approximately HK$648,000 (2011: HK$136,000)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

13 Remuneration of Directors and Five

B EBERIEEEHFMALH
Highest Paid Individuals i &

(a) Directors’ remuneration ) EE=EM &
Directors’ remuneration for the year is as follows: FAMNESHEMT -

Year ended 31 December 2012
HZE202F12A31MBLEE

Employer’s
contributions

Other to Mandatory

Directors’ Incentive benefits Provident
Name of Directors fees Salaries  bonuses  (Note 2) Fund Total
Hitn o
ES 3% Bt BwH 2ER
EEpA e e 1AL (M =E2) EXF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FERT FERT TERT FE T FERT
Executive directors HITEF
Li Kwei Chung =
(Chief Executive) (1B 48 3) — 769 — 28 14 811
Liu Loi Ying Bk — 675 — 1 14 690
Liu Kam Lung B — 500 — — 1 511
Lee Cheung Ming (Note 1) R PR = 107 = = 5 112
Non-executive directors FHITEFE
Hui King Chun iR — — — — _ _
Sung Tak Wing Leo RIGE 100 — — — — 100
Chan Sun Kwong = 120 — — —_ — 120
Chan Chi Kwong Dickson PR ¢ 100 — — — — 100
Ko Yin Wai SEE 100 — — — — 100
Total A&t 420 2,051 — 29 44 2,544
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

13 Remuneration of Directors and Five

Highest Paid Individuals (continued) B € ()

(a) EEME @)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

Directors’ remuneration for the year is as follows:

FANEEMSWT :

Year ended 31 December 2011
HE201MF12A318ILEE

BEERIEAESFMALH

Employer's
Other  contributions
Directors’ Incentive benefits  to Mandatory
Name of Directors fees Salaries bonuses (Note 2) Provident Fund Total
H A 58 1l 1
- BRI & YN &
EEME ok e e (BTsE2) B E % &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHAIT FHT FHAT FHT FAT
Executive directors HITEE
Li Kwei Chung TR
(Chief Executive) (FTB 4 #) — 726 250 25 12 1,013
Liu Loi Ying Bk — 530 — — 12 542
Liu Kam Lung Baie — 81 — — 4 85
Non-executive directors FHMTEE
Hui King Chun Fi e — — — — — —
Sung Tak Wing Leo K54 2 — — — — 2
Chan Sun Kwong fRE 3 — — — — 3
Chan Chi Kwong Dickson B %9 S 2 — — — — 2
Ko Yin Wai SBE 3 — — — — 3
Total a5t 10 1,337 250 25 28 1,650
Notes: P 7 -
1. Mr. Lee Cheung Ming was appointed on 3 August 2012. 1. FRGFEN201248A3ABET -
2. Other benefits include car park rental allowance and leave pay. 2. HihBAHEFEEESHESHERR
% g o
3. Pursuant to an agreement entered into between MiniLogic HK 3. AR 1R Al = B B 2 A BR SR A R 2011

and Mr. Li Kwei Chung on 3 January 2011, Mr. Li was entitled
to a bonus amounting to HK$ 250,000 for the year of 2011.
The entitlement to the aforesaid bonus is vested on Mr. Li's
continuity to work with MiniLogic HK for the year from
1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

13 Remuneration of Directors and Five
Highest Paid Individuals (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three
and two directors of the Company for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 respectively, details of whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in above. The
emoluments of the remaining two and three highest paid
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

BEERIEAESFMALH

B £ @)

(b) EEESFMALHME

RNEBEEZE2012F R2011F12H31H
EFEMNRAAEaTMALES 5
FBEEARA=ZBEMEBEST  £EH
B EF 1B A E X EBEF - i £201245F
1ANBIEFESHRTME REZ2011
F12A31BIEFER T =E &= 5 b

respectively, are as follows: ATHE BT -
2012 2011
2012 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe EUREDER 1,145 1,385
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund R EATES HK 26 36
1,171 1,421

The emoluments of the 2 (2011: 3) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ZMEQONE : =Z8) &= H MEA
WHEMNFATEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2012 2011
2012 20114
Nil to $1,000,000 Z 3 7T £ 1,000,00075 7T 2 3

None of emoluments has been paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year (2011:
nil). In addition, none of the directors of the Company has
waived any emoluments during the year.

MBEAR REBWER L A+ X2
NMESERSSTBMASIREMARSE
=) By 7Y 22 B K 1F 7 Bl B O 4 B (2011
FoE) M BEARANEETNF
WHRELZMME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

14

15

16

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of
the Company

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
includes a profit of approximately HK$7,242,000 (2011: a loss of
approximately HK$340,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

Dividends

No dividends was declared or paid during the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: nil).

(Loss)/Earnings per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the consolidated
loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012 of approximately HK$17,211,000 (2011 profit :
approximately HK$10,796,000), and the weighted average number
of shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2012 of
197,540,983 (2011: 150,000,000 shares in issue, being the number
of shares in issue immediately after the completion of capitalization
issue as detailed in note 24(a)(d) throughout the year).

The Group did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during
the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

I Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l SRl &E B AR 2 7

14

15

16

ERNREEAES(BE)
i A

ARRBEAEBEEAEBEEEERAR
A B 75 SRR R I 2 497,242,000 JT 2 i Al
(20114 : #J340,00078 7T 2 E518) »

Iz B

B E202F12A3MBIEFE B Sk
SATER IR E (20114 « £8) ©

BR(EE) BT

B E202F12A31IBIEFENTGRER
BEEDBEARAEBEABREREBRY
17,211,000 7t (20114 % # : 4910,796,000
BIT) REE2012F12 A31 B IEEED 1T
A% 5 0 #E S 35 8% B 197,540,983 A% A% 15 (2011
F : BEF E B % 17150,000,000 8% & 1n - B
0 [T 5 24(a)(d) BT & it 22 8 B Ak B 1T K
BEEITHROEE)FTE -

AEBREZE2012F %2011F 128318 1E
FEAEA M EEEE NN L @R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

17 Property, Plant and Equipment 17 ¥ -BEREZE

Furniture
Computer Office  Motor and Leasehold
Equipment Instruments Equipment Vehicle Fixture improvement Total
BAE HKER HEWE
ERE IR R "E RKE #1& &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET TERT TER TET FTER
Valuation: fhiE :
At 1 January 2011 M2011E1 818 69 2,444 7 18 13 — 2,551
Additions NE 104 2,033 — — 10 — 2,147
At 31 December 2011 20114128318 173 4,477 7 18 23 — 4,698
At 1 January 2012 MW2012F1A18 173 4,477 7 18 23 = 4,698
Additions NE 42 1,267 — — 2 — 1,311
Disposals HE — (543) — — — — (543)
At 31 December 2012 M2012F12 /318 215 5,201 7 18 25 — 5,466
Accumulated Rt E
depreciation
At 1 January 2011 M2011F1 818 — — — — — — —
Charge for the year FRNE 71 1,150 6 18 10 — 1,255
At 31 December 2011 M2011512 /318 71 1,150 6 18 10 — 1,255
At 1 January 2012 201261818 71 1,150 6 18 10 — 1,255
Charge for the year FRNE 63 1,225 1 — 4 — 1,293
Written back on P E R R
disposals — (200) (200)
At 31 December 2012 2012412318 134 2,175 7 18 14 — 2,348
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31H 81 3,026 — — 1" — 3,118
At 31 December 2011 MW2011F12A31H 102 3,327 1 — 13 — 3,443
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

17 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The Group's property, plant and equipment were revalued as at 31
December 2010 by an independent firm of surveyors, Norton
Appraisals Limited, by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar assets.

Had the Group’s property, plant and equipment been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 would have been stated as follows:

17

ME BEERRKE®m

AEER2010F12A31B0NME - BE &
RER—HBILASTERREFEHER
RAI2EMBRBEENAIZINREE
HEM -

MAEEOYE  BE REEUKRARRE
E AR BIR2012F12 8318 &20114
NRANBNYE BEERLSENEEOES
HIER AR :

2012

201245
Accumulated Carrying
Cost Depreciation values
RS 2t E IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FERT FHET
Computer equipment B E 514 426 88
Instruments TR 9,716 6,632 3,084
Office equipment N 44 44 —
Furniture and fixtures RERKEE 90 77 13
Motor vehicles R 166 166 —
Leasehold improvement HEWMHERE 150 150 —
10,680 7,495 3,185

2011

201148
Accumulated Carrying
Cost Depreciation Values
B AR EEig = REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Computer equipment BIMEE 473 363 110
Instruments TR 9,034 5,483 3,551
Office equipment i NE 44 41 3
Furniture and fixtures RERKE 88 73 15
Motor vehicles b 166 166 —
Leasehold improvement HEWMHERE 150 148 2
9,955 6,274 3,681
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105

18 Inventories 18 78
2012 2011
2012 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Raw materials R 983 1,064
Work in progress o U 2,599 867
Finished goods X fn 3,768 2,177
7,350 4,108
Less: Provision for slow- moving and B RBR T ERE
obsolete inventories (784) (136)
6,566 3,972
As at 31 December 2012, slow-moving and obsolete inventories MR2012F12A31H BRAHELMBRFEEY
amounting to approximately HK$784,000 (2011: HK$136,000) had 784,000 7T (2011 4F : 136,000/8 7T) E fE 2
been fully provided. Apart from that no inventory was carried at net EEEN WERFEATERFEAR-
realizable value.
19 Trade Receivables 19 ERE FERX
2012 2011
2012 F 201148
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBx FAET
Trade receivables B E 5 BR 3K 8,041 20,381
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

19 Trade Receivables (continued)

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from “cash on
delivery” to 90 days to its trade customers as at 31 December 2012
and 2011. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at
the end of each year, presented based on the invoice date:

19 ERE ZRF @

MR2012FE R20115E 128318 AEEBE
AEESEREFREIEINNRIEZ0BENE
B -UTREREEARANEKRE S ERAME
BN REBEZZEHE

2012 2011

2012 20114

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#& T FHT

0 - 30 days 0-30H 1,827 8,462
31 -60 days 31-60H 1,858 4,361
61 —90 days 61-90H 1,891 3,788
More than 90 days HBEo0H 2,465 3,770
8,041 20,381

Amounts included in trade receivables at 31 December 2012 and
2011 related to both IC sold and services performed under ASIC
services contracts and invoiced to those customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 70% (31 December
2011: 39%) of the total trade receivable was due from the Group’s
largest customer during the year. The Group has implemented
policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential
customers before granting credit. The Group has adopted a policy
of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The Group’s
exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored by
management. The maximum credit risk of such financial assets is
represented by the carrying value of asset.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal
credit assessment process to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Credit limits attributed
to customers are reviewed by the management regularly. In
determining recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers
any change in credit quality of the trade receivable from the date
credit was initially granted up to the end of the year and no
impairment is necessary for these balances which are not past due.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l SRl &E B AR 2 7

M20124% K2011F 128318 Sl AR B
2 BR FH R IB B K B B 8H B R AR IRASIC
REEHRERBER  YERZERFH
BEEo

MARFEAEIWRE ZERERLERTO% (2011
F12A318 :39%) I REAKENEAR
FrAAEEmEETREERR -~&H
ERlEHRE  EkBELHEEMHBERPE
TEEFESE -A5BENBRAERFE
RIEMYUFHENORS MEBENSEE
AEBEFMEHSMNRBREEEFHANEEF
H-HEEREENEREERRAEERN
BRTEE °

REREMHEF 28 ARBEERABE
EFEREFUAFEHEEEEPNEREEERR
RAEBFPHNEERB -LTEFPNEERE
HEEEE MR BEERKE SRR A
WERER AEEEZREVAREEREE
HEFRHHARKREZEREEERNE
g B AR B H A A R B 7 1F R
& o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

19 ERE ZRF @

19 Trade Receivables (continued)

Included in the Group'’s trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$4,032,000 and
HK$9,512,000 which are past due as at 31 December 2012 and
2011 respectively for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The aging analysis of the Group's trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired is as follows:

IWAXREBRKE SRR EHRTFEEREDE
& # 49 £4,032,000% T 9,512,000/ 7T
REWHIE  ZERED D BIR2012F &
201MEE12 A3 B B - M A& B & K AR
EEBELREE ANEBETERZSEHRT
BEMERD -

AEENCBRERRENEKE S RX
R oM

2012 2011

20124 20114

HK$°000 HK$’000

TERT FET

0 - 30 days 0-30H 274 213
31 -60 days 31-60 H 611 2,716
61 — 90 days 61-90 H 680 4,545
More than 90 days HiBE90H 2,465 2,038
4,030 9,512

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality up to the date of this report and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. Majority of the
Group's trade receivables which are past due but not impaired as at
31 December 2012 has been received after 31 December 2012.

E@BEARRENEKRE SR ET T
BHEREHENETBILRELPEM - RIEB
Tk TEEERADRFHRERE R
ARHEAFEHHEEIZTEEAR
FomBASRDERE AT ZEEE - R20124F
NANBEBHERBENAEB KX H
FEUWE 5 BREAEMN20125E12 A31 8% Y@ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

19 Trade Receivables (continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables

during the year is as follows:

19 EWE SRR @

RUEZEARBRERFANESHOT :

2012 2011

20124 20114

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Balance at beginning of the year F R — 1,236
Reversal of allowance during the year FRRERE — (17)

Amount written off during the year F i A R AT 4 Bl ZR0E
as uncollectible ks = (1,219)
Balance at end of the year FIR G = —
. o +
20 Deposits and Prepayments 20 e RFANNRIE

2012 2011

2012 20114

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx T

Deposit for purchase of raw materials KERMEZES 169 430
Deposit for purchase of instruments KEITA RS 92 433
Rental and utilities deposits for leased properties HEMEZHBERKERS 140 124
Prepayment of listing expenses LIRS ZEBNARIE = 8,380
Prepayment of sample charges iRk & 2 T 58 = 119
Deposits for design service RETRE 2R E 758 549
Others H1 247 147
1,406 10,182
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For the year ended 31 December 2012  #Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

21 Bank Balances and Cash 21 RITERRE S
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits with BITEBRRSEREES RTINS /%
an original maturity of three months or less which are held with BRIASEA =AU TRARITH
financial institutions and carry interest at prevailing market rates. B R BHEEBFER R20124F %2011
The average effective interest rates of the Group's bank balances F12A318 AEERTERNTFHER
are 0.88% and 0.07% per annum, as at 31 December 2012 and FEFESRAE0.88% K%0.07% °

2011 respectively.

22 Trade and Other Payables 22 EHESZ RHEMEMNER

2012 2011

20124 20114F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT THET

Trade payables EBHEZER 1,524 1,808

Other payables and accruals Hfth e~ N B AT 1B 2,077 946

3,601 2,754

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables presented based on REERBEERREZEHZINENE
the invoice date at the end of each year, is as follows: SERNERESTOAT

2012 2011

2012 201148

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FET

0 - 30 days 0-308 833 1,715

31 - 60 days 31-60H 428 2

61 —90 days 61-90 H 172 —

More than 90 days A0 H 91 91

1,524 1,808
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z20124F12 31 H IFF/E

23 Deferred Taxation 23 EEHIE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the RIEEMBRARERNEERIE (BE)/
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements BEAKRTIDANERFRNOESHNT :

during the year are as follows:

Revaluation
of property, Accelerated
plant and tax  Unused tax
equipment depreciation losses Total
EfHYE - b 3E B REA
BER®ZE e HEER A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2011 R20114F1A1H 34 355 — 389
Charged to profit or loss kB — 150 — 150
At 31 December 2011 2011412 A31H 34 505 — 539
At 1 January 2012 MK2012F1A1H° 34 505 — 539
Credited to profit or loss FAEZE — (51) (488) (539)
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31H 34 454 (488) —
As at 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax loss of HR2012F 128318 AEEBHMAFHAEZ/H
approximately HK$6,541,000 (2011: nil) available for offset against T8 B 18 49 /56,541,000 7T (2011 4F : &) » 7
future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. Deferred tax AR AR ERN I o] ER IS E - KEFH
assets have been recognised in respect of HK$2,958,000 of such 2 Bt It £ % I8 & 38 7 322,958,000 T 2 &
tax loss. No further deferred tax asset has been recognised in ERTBEE - B ARAEE 1351{ Sk A SR
respect of the tax loss due to the unpredictability of future profit WARRIBEERERELRELEHEEE -

streams.
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24 Share Capital 24 R
(a) Share capital (@) B
Authorised and issued share capital EER B BITRA
2012 2011
20124 20114F
No. of Nominal No. of Nominal
shares value shares value
gk g=| HE ROHAB H B
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR THER T & FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each &S R0.1EB THZER
Authorised EE
Upon incorporation (note (a)) R A S 12 (M 7E(a)) — — 3,800 380
At 1 January ®W1A1H8 10,000,000 1,000,000 — —
Increase during the year (note (c)) F R (B 5E(0) — — 9,996,200 999,620
At 31 December ®12A31H 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRABE
Upon incorporation (note (a) and (b)) R LMt Bk 32 &
(Fff 7% (a) K (b)) = = = =
At 1 January ®W1A18 3,800 380 — —
Issue of shares on Reorganization REEEREITRG
(note (b)) (Pt 5% (b)) — — 3,800 380
Issue of shares upon Capitalisation BEARETRSG
(note (d)) (Pt 5E(d)) 146,200 14,620 — —
Issue of shares upon Placing (note (e)) & A & 2% 17 i 1p
(B 3 (e)) 50,000 5,000 — —
At 31 December W12A31H 200,000 20,000 3,800 380
(@)  The Company was incorporated on 31 March 2011 in @ A2QFR20M1MFIAINBRH
the Cayman Islands with an authorized share capital of ERETMKL ZFEREE
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10 380,000/ 7T © 9 /43,800,000 &
each, of which one share of HK$0.10 was allotted and FREECI0B TR H A
issued. 1A% E {E0.107% 7T /) iR {7 B B 3
REEAT -
(b) On 20 December 2011, the Company, Minilogic BVI (b) HM2011F12H8208 ' XA &

and the shareholders of MiniLogic HK entered into a
share swap agreement, pursuant to which Minilogic
BVI acquired the entire issued share capital of MiniLogic
HK from the said shareholders in consideration of, (i)
Minilogic BVI crediting as paid up the initial one nil paid
share of Minilogic BVI held by the Company; (i) the
crediting as fully paid at par the initial one nil paid
share of the Company and (iii) the issue and allotment
of 3,799,999 shares to the said shareholders, all
credited as fully paid.

Minilogic BVI & #1 &l /= &} 69 & B
MR ET S — D IR % - Rt -
Minilogic BVI[A] £ it B% 3R U f 1
BlmRI 2 E BITRA - RE
% () Minilogic BVI#§ 2K 2 7] B #%5
Minilogic BVI#] 45 — A& A< 45 A% 51 I%
MDARRS B () AR )
1B — R R D R EE AR
P AEE ¢ R A bl iR R BT
K2 it %% 3,799,999 1% & & A R 5l
BERHRM -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

24 Share Capital (continued)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

(©

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 23
December 2011, the authorized share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000 by the creation of additional
9,996,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 23
December 2011, conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited by
HK$14,620,000 as a result of the placing as mentioned
and defined in (e) below, an aggregate of 146,200,000
Shares, by way by capitalization of the sum of
HK$14,620,000 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company, would be issued,
allotted and credited as fully paid at par to the
Shareholders as appearing on the register of members
of the Company as of 23 December 2011. Upon the
Capitalization, the issued share capital of the Company
would become HK$15,000,000 divided into
150,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 19 January 2012, 50,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued by way of placing at a price
of HK$0.80 per share (the “Placing Price”) for cash
consideration of HK$40,000,000. The excess of the
Placing Price over the par value of the shares issued
was credited to the share premium account.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z Al S & £ B A R A 7

24 BR 7N (@)
(a) M7

EERCBATRA #)

(©

(e)

B E2011F12H23H B B W
BREABZER ADal#EER
%5 419,996,200,000 M& i m®
E0.108 T /) & @ Bk 1§ H %
F B AN #3380,00058 T # =
1,000,000,0003% 7T °

B IKE2011F12 8238 BB K
RARBR FEAAAKRODEE
BRA MBS (10 T X(e)FTiR it &
F ) T & # 88 14,620,000 T
B ARABBEBHEARRDERKM
#= (B BR # B8R %814,620,0007% JT
BrEAMAR mR2011F
12A238 &5 AR AKRE =M
WRREEERTREZEG &
146,200,000 % A BR 5l & %5 2 &Y
B REARLE  ARARME
1T B% A ¥ & 15,000,0005%8 JT ¢
4 /150,000,000 f% & f% I {50.10
BRI D ©

R2012F1 8198 AR REB
B & 75 = 3% B % 0.80 74 JT HY (& 1%
([ & {& 1) ¥ 750,000,000 %
AR E1E0.107% T /Y & 38 A% DA #R ER
15 & X {E40,000,000% T - Bt &
BRLEBRTROEEMNBHSE
ARG EERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 125318 IFF/Z

24 Share Capital (continued)

(b) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders through the
optimization of the debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. The Group considers the cost of capital and risk
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its
overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the raising of new debts.

25 Reserves

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 56 of
the consolidated financial statements. Merger reserve arose
as a result of the Reorganization taken place on 20 December
2011 which represents the issued shares and share premium
of MiniLogic HK upon group Reorganization and the nil-paid
issued of 380,000 shares of the Company which credited as
fully paid.

24 BR 7N (@)

(b)

EXxEE
AEBEEEHAAURRAEEBET
EREBEGLEEY TS —H Ak

FEBBCETS R R AR AR IR FE
RA B e

AEBNERARBERRBRRITEHR LA
& ARARARHEEAREER (B
BEEITERA  RERRZREN)BK -

AEENEEB TR EARE -
AEEEEERZEERNAENEALK

AFER TEEAIMNKRE - BT
AR BB EHEREE AR
% o

25 f#%E

(a)

rEE

AREEAFEREFHNHESBERE
BEEINNAGE M BEHRRESCED
REeEE= P RA-201MF12H20
HESAMEENEGHEEESEEE
HEMARSROE ETRO RRMDE
BUARKRARARBBZ T XEITH
380,000 A BR%| BE R B ARG ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

25 Reserves (continued)

HE2012F12H31HILFE

(b) Statement of change in equity of

the Company

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

25 fRE @

(b) ZATNEZLSEB X

REBKE

e

1 28 % A A AR 0 A ) 22 B
RERNWYRIANES#E
7R A % {8 7 25 4B AR B o0 TR AR 4R 2 1

HRBE -

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual VEHHROESEFBWOT -
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Share retained
Capital Premium profits Total
(REtEE)
[ BB RE R 8 3% F &%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2011 M2011E1H1H — — — =
Loss for the year FEEE = = (340) (340)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 ml s — — — —
Total comprehensive income >HEMERE — — (340) (340)
Transactions with owners HBEFAZRS
Allotment and issue of consideration MR A R BEITRE
shares and credited as fully paid for  B& {5 & ABR5IES 2
share swap (note 24(a)(a-b)) (B 3£ 24(a)(a-b)) 380 — — 380
380 — — 380
At 31 December 2011 R20114%F12 A31H 380 — (340) 40
At 1 January 2012 R2012F181H 380 — (340) 40
Profit of the year FE % A — — 7,242 7,242
Other comprehensive income H b2 m e — — — —
Total Comprehensive income 2HEERE — — 7,242 7,242
Transactions with owners BERAZRS
Issue of shares upon Capitalisation B AR BEITIRG
(note 24(a)(d)) (B 5 24(a)(d)) 14,620 (14,620) — —
Issue of shares upon Placing e EBITIRMD
(note 24(a)(e)) (B 3% 24(a)e)) 5,000 35,000 — 40,000
Expenses incurred in connection with £ A 3% 17 A& 1D EE £ Y B 2
the issue of shares during the year — (5,678) — (5,678)
19,620 14,702 — 34,322
20,000 14,702 6,902 41,604
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26

27

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees employed. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the MPF scheme
vest immediately. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in fund under the control of trustees.
Total contributions paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$167,000 and HK$134,000
for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 respectively, which
had been recognized as expenses and included in staff costs in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment of
retirement benefits beyond the contributions as described above.

Operating Lease Commitments

At the end of the year, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease in
respect of leased properties which are payable as follows:

26

27

g8 R R |

REBERFMBEEKEBL2HBEEREL A
FIMRESFTEGORIEGERAER
el ([RESFE]  BESHEHHEBY
EEABEENEEHKRKGE - BikaE
S E  AEBENMEEESHEKEERH
WAKIS% R ZarBIEL 5K A BRA
LA® A 25,0007 7T & £ IR © A 5% 5T 8] /E 1 &9
HHAFEB RESTENEENRLREH
MEENHABE EomET AL - A&
BREZE2012F 22011 F12A31HIEFE
MBI ENSIENNEREES
49 /167,000 7T N 134,000/8 7T * 2S¢ &
ERERAZTHERGEEZERERTI R
BIRKA -

ANEBEG B RN Y EE B RN A
BRARBHNEL-

REHERE

RER AEBREMAIHELLEHEERS
MEEMERZ ARSERERNFAES
HIE R

2012 2011

20125 201148

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Within one year —F R 406 301
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 544 82
950 383

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and a warehouse in Hong Kong.
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to 3 years with
rental fixed at the date of signing of lease agreements and do not
include contingent rentals.

REMENAEIBEEAEEREURES
MPAREEUREERNNES - FIEAN
HEFHARA—2=F REFTHEHZEA
sk TemsAElE -
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28

29

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, 6 employees of the Group have
completed the required number of years of service under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), to be eligible for
long service payments on termination of their employment. The
Group is only liable to make such payments where the termination
meets the circumstances specified in the Ordinance.

If the termination of all such employees met the circumstances set
out in the Ordinance, the Group's liability as at 31 December 2012
and 2011 would be approximately HK$84,000 and HK$141,000
respectively. No provision has been made for these amounts in the
consolidated financial statements as the directors of the Company
are of the view that these amounts are not expected to crystallize in
the foreseeable future.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Material Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into the following material related party
transactions during the year.

Key management compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 13(a) and one of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 13(b), is as follows:

28

29

HREE

720124 K20114F12 83180 "REBH X
HEBE X BEETEEMBIEN (ZIEH6))
MATEREFHMEEBNRILEARE
ERERED - AEE AT A ZIEHIFTIE
ERIBRTEELBAMRK-

WMERB LitE B &R IEAR T 6 Z G0 Tk
I E I A B AR & B R20124F & 20114
12A318 ® &8 & 5 5l 4 /84,0008 7T &
141,000 JT 78 £ @ 37 48 5t 35 L & R AR
EMBmETPELREE BAARAESZR
RBHELSERITRBERIEER -

BrIA EFTH BB AN 0 AN B 20124 K& 2011
FNANBTEEMEAKAREE -

EXBEALIXRS

AEBRFRNEEABEALIBUATERR
5
FEEEABENHMH

AEETIBREBASNME  BREWNME
B BEBEEXNTFTARAEENSER
EX M EBO)MEENESR — L&D
FHEENSRMT

2012 2011

2012 £ 20114

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Salaries and other short term employee benefits HehHEMEHRERERBR 2,848 2,335
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund BiE S MK 58 40
2,906 2,375
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30 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 16 May 2012 (“the Adoption Date”). Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years effective
from 10 July 2012 of the scheme and will expire on 9 July 2022.

The purpose of the Share Options Scheme is to provide incentives
to the participants. The participants of the Share Option Scheme, as
absolutely determined by the Board, include:

(@ any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive directors) of any member of the
Group or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest ("Invested Entity");

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(©)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(9) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity.
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30 BREE w

30 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting
the Share Option Scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time
provided that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval in general meeting. However, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has
been obtained in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an
option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

On the basis 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of this report, the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 20,000,000 shares.

From the Adoption Date of the Share Option Scheme to 31
December 2012, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled,
expired or lapsed and there were no outstanding share options
under the Share Option Scheme.
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31 Events after the Reporting Period 31 REHEEE

On 28 January 2013, the Company and Mr. Cheng Tun Nei who is
a substantial shareholder of the Company and the owner of the
entire equity interest of the target company, had entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement (the “S&P”) for the
proposed acquisition (the “Proposed Acquisition”). According to
the S&P, the Company has agreed to acquire the entire issued
capital of the target company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Target Group”) at a consideration of
HK$45,000,000 (the “Consideration”) which will be satisfied by (i)
the deposit (the “Deposit”) of HK$4,500,000 paid on 28 January
2013 under the S&P; (ii) cash of HK$15,500,000; and (iii) the
remaining balance of the Consideration being HK$25,000,000 shall
be settled by the issuance of the promissory note by the Company
upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition.

The Deposit is unsecured, non-interest bearing and refundable in
the event that the Proposed Acquisition is terminated.

The Target Group is principally engaged in the provision of securities
broking, margin and other financing, underwriting placing services
and consultancy services.

The completion of the Proposed Acquisition is subject to the
fulfillment of the conditions set out in the S&P, including approval
of the Company'’s shareholders in extraordinary general meeting. As
of the approval date on the financial statements of the Company,
the Proposed Acquisition is under progress and not yet completed.

Details of the Proposed Acquisition are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 28 January 2013, 27 February 2013 and 6
March 2013.
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32 Particulars of the Subsidiaries of the
Company

(2) As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company had direct
or indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which

32 AREHNKHMEBARFE

(a) M2012F R2011E 128318 * XA f]

ELATHEARD A ERHEEE

are private companies, particulars of which are set out below: HoZERARNEALENT  FBN
T
Place of
incorporation Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company and operation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NCIECE HEMRIREX LB BERTRAZRA G R A= FTEXHK
Direct Indirect
B SE:3
Minilogic Investment British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100% — Investment holding
Limited of US$1
EEBREAZHS TREE1ETH 100% BE K
AR
MiniLogic Device Hong Kong 7,651,200 Ordinary — 100% Design, development
Corporation Limited share of HK$1 and sales of ICs
HElEE AR AR i 7,651,200 f& — 100% =%&F - FEK
BREMBE1AETH iH & =B IR
AR
(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries (b) FEUWR(FEA) M B A Bl E

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the amount due from/(to)
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amount approximates to its fair value
as at the reporting date.

33 Authorisation of Issue of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2013.
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